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STATEMENT BY CHIEF EXECUTIVE OFFICER

The attached financial report of the City of Joondalup for the financial year ended

30 June 2022 is based on proper accounts and records to present fairly the financial position

of the City of Joondalup at 30 June 2022 and the results of the operations for the

financial year then ended in accordance with the Local Government Act 1995 and, to the extent
that they are not inconsistent with the Act, the Australian Accounting Standards.

Signed on the 20th day of December

22CE0197

C/ﬂef Executive Officer

James Pearson
Name of Chief Executive Officer




CITY OF JOONDALUP

STATEMENT OF COMPREHENSIVE INCOME
BY NATURE ORTYPE

FOR THE YEAR ENDED 30 JUNE 2022

2022 2022 2021
MOTE Agtual Budgst Hestaled Actual”
Revenue
Rates 2(a), 25(a) 100,765,757 100,702,304 99,245,067
Operating grants and subsidies 2(a) 8,633,677 6,094,980 6,109,786
Contributions, Reimbursements and Donations 2(a) 1,872,726 1,108,156 1,255,157
Fees and charges 2(a) 40,871,218 41,552,470 40,094,589
Interest earnings 2(a) 942,843 666,527 1,500,344
Other revenue 2(a) 3,798,536 1,697,723 3,317,572
156,884,757 151,822,160 151,522,515
Expenses
Employee costs 2(b) (62,011,632) (66,183,322) (60,128,780)
Materials and contracts 2(b) (48,677,996) (55,194,834) (46,535,720)
Utility charges 2(b) (5,808,545) (6,133,858) (5,583,393)
Depreciation on non-current assets 10(b) (32,865,308) (31,927,323) (31,530,289)
Interest expenses 2(b) (309,204) (323,391) (387,238)
Insurance expenses (1,535,116} (1,628,739) (1,457,672)
(151,207,801)  (161,391,467) (145,623,092)
5,876,956 (9,569,307) 5,899,423
Non-operating grants and subsidies 2(a) 12,893,004 11,007,446 7,552,188
Non-operating Contributions 2(a) 316,114 210,422 1,576,738
Profit on asset disposals 10(a) 170,565 68,388 145,064
Loss on asset disposals 10(a) (54,175) (202,273) (15,882,989)
Loss on land held for sale 0 0 (62,997)
Fair value adjustments to financial assets at fair value
through profit or loss 4,996 0 3,233
Share of profit or (loss) of associates accounted for using
the equity method 22(a) (2,271,2086) 0 (921,960)
11,059,298 11,083,983 (7,590,723)
Met result for the period 16,736,254 1,514,676 (1,691,300)
Other comprehensive income
Items that will not be reclassified subsequently to profit or loss
Changes in asset revaluation surplus 11 5,639,590 0 65,900,787
Total other comprehensive income for the pericd 5,639,590 0 65,900,787
Totai comprehensive income for the period 22,375,844 1,514,676 64,209,487

This statement is to be read in conjunction with the accompanying notes.

* Refer to Note 30 for restatement of comparatives.
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CITY OF JOONDALUP

STATEMENT OF FINANCIAL POSITION
BYMATURE OR TYPE

FOR THE YEAR ENDED 30 JUNE 2022

CURRBENT ASSETS

Cash and cash equivalents
Trade and other receivables
Other financial assets
Inventories

Other current assets

TOTAL CURRENT ASSETS

MNON-CURRENT ASSETS

Trade and other receivables

Other financial assets

Inventories

Investment in associates

Property, plant and equipment
Infrastructure

Right-of-use assets

TOTAL NON-CURRENT ASSETS

TOTAL ASSETS

CURRENT LIABILITIES

Trade and other payables

Lease liabilities

Other liabilities

Borrowings

Employee related provisions
Other provisions

TOTAL CURRENT LIABILITIES

NOMN-CURRENT LIABILITIES

Lease liabilities

Borrowings

Employee related provisions

TOTAL NON-CURRENT LIABILITIES

TOTAL LIABILITIES
NET ASSETS

EQUITY

Retained surplus

Reserves - cash/financial asset backed
Revaluation surplus

TOTAL EQUITY

Hestaled Hesialed 1st July

NOTE 2022 20217 20207

$ $ 5

3,30 39,269,487 12,376,825 8,491,982
5 4,979,660 3,650,817 5,571,476
6 (b),30 101,210,000 127,650,000 116,530,000
6 (a),30 708,427 226,281 1,784,789
7 1,111,109 1,355,533 1,427,614
147,278,683 145,259,456 133,805,861
5 2,106,389 2,039,460 1,942,814
6 (b) 97,255 92,259 89,026
6 (a) 2,059,599 2,086,631 2,770,380
22 28,422,837 13,083,629 12,538,550
8 (a),30 372,664,942 366,879,150 369,473,238
9 (a) 972,842,028 973,377,044 917,451,547
14 (a) 6,480,498 6,551,747 6,539,758
1,384,673,548 1,364,109,920 1,310,805,313
1,531,852,231 1,509,369,376 1,444,611,174
12 12,898,751 12,539,305 12,140,746
14 (b) 492772 455,497 362,194
13 5,534,917 4,499,377 1,977,599
15 (a) 909,513 1,836,594 2,445,660
16 15,341,835 14,800,690 14,638,174
17 9,415 9,415 66,705
35,187,202 34,140,878 31,631,078
14 (b) 6,203,663 6,245,829 6,270,158
15 (a) 1,898,379 2,807,892 4,644,486
16 1,501,965 1,419,898 1,520,060
9,604,007 10,473,619 12,434,704
44,791,210 44,614,497 44,065,782
1,487.161,021  1,464,754,879 1,400,545,392
555,332,842 533,361,385 559,229,274
4 105,567,295 110,772,200 86,595,611
11 826,260,884 820,621,294 754,720,507

1,487,161,021

1,464,754,879

1,400,545,392

This statement is to be read in conjunction with the accompanying notes.

* Refer to Note 30 for restatement of comparatives.
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CITY OF JOOMDALUP
STATEMENT OF CHANGES IN EQUITY
BY NATURE OR TYPE
FOR THE YEAR ENDED 30 JUNE 2022

RESERVES
RETAINED CASH REVALUATION TOTAL
NOTE SURPLUS BACKED SURPLUS EQUITY
$ 3 $ 3

Balance as at 30 June 2020 559,003,347 86,595,611 772,614,765 1,418,213,723
Restatement of comparatives® 30 225,927 0 (17,894,258) (17,668,331)
Restated balance at 1st July 2020 559,229,274 86,595,611 754,720,507 1,400,545,392
Net result for the period (2,036,709) 0 0 (2,036,709)
Restatement of comparatives* 30 345,409 0 0 345,409
Other comprehensive income 0 0 65,900,787 65,900,787
Total comprehensive income (1,691,300) 0 65,900,787 64,209,487
Transfers from reserves 4 21,291,254 (21,291,254) 0 0
Transfers to reserves 4 (45,467,843) 45,467,843 0 0
Flesiated Balance as at 30 June 2021~ 533,361,385 110,772,200 820,621,294 1,464,754,879
Comprehensive income

Net result for the period 16,736,254 0 0 16,736,254
Other comprehensive income 11 0 0 5,639,590 5,639,590
Total comprehensive income 16,736,254 0 5,639,590 22,375,844
Transfers from reserves 4 33,831,761 (33,831,761) 0 0
Transfers {o reserves 4 (28,626,856) 28,626,856 0 0
Transfer from Trust Funds 28 30,298 0 0 30,298
Balance as at 30 June 2022 555,332,842 105,567,295 826,260,884 1,487,161,021

This statement is to be read in conjunction with the accompanying notes.

* Refer to Note 30 for restatement of comparatives.
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CITY OF JOONDALUP
STATEMENT OF CASH FLOW
FOR THE YEAR ENDED 30 JUNE 2022

2022 2022 2021
MOTE Actusl Budget Hestaled Actual”
§ $ $
CASH FLOWS FROM OPERATING ACTIVITIES
Faceipts
Rates 100,897,986 99,881,101 101,592,125
Operating grants, subsidies and contributions 8,640,874 7,189,978 9,129,662
Fees and charges 40,859,297 42,383,519 40,408,800
Interest received 942,843 666,527 1,500,344
Goods and services tax received 419,595 0 0
Other revenue 928,674 363,164 657,675
152,689,269 150,484,289 153,288,606
Paymenis
Employee costs (60,227,300) (65,877,915) (62,071,503)
Materials and contracts {49,344,554) (55,062,801) (46,656,107)
Utility charges (5,808,545) (6,133,858) (5,583,393)
Interest expenses {309,204) (323,391) (387,238)
Insurance paid (1,535,116) (1,628,739) (1,457,672)
Goods and services tax paid 0 0 (63,749)
(117,224,720) (129,026,704) (116,219,662)
Net cash provided by (used in)
operating activities 18 35,464,550 21,457,585 37,068,944
CASH FLOWS FROM INVESTIMG ACTIVITIES
Payments for purchase of property, plant & equipment 8(a) (13,031,955) (5,799,784) (8,731,113)
Payments for construction of infrastructure 9(a) (22,256,731)  (46,957,666) (25,975,883)
Non-operating grants, subsidies and contributions 14,244,658 11,217,868 11,650,704
Net Proceeds/(payments) from financial assets at amortised cost -
Term deposits 26,440,000 0 (11,120,001)
Proceeds from disposal of land held for sale 0 1,425,000 1,496,094
Proceeds from sale of property, plant & equipment 10(a) 471,727 512,600 445,136
Net Distributions received from Tamala Park Regional Council 23(c) 1,988,872 1,666,667 1,876,606
Equity Investment - Mindarie Regional Councit 22(b) (14,166,667) 0 0
Net cash provided by (used in)
investment activities (6,310,096)  (37,935,315) (30,358,457)
CASH FLOWS FROM FINANCING ACTIVITIES
Repayment of borrowings 15(b) (1,836,594} (1,836,594) (2,445,660)
Payments for principal portion of lease fiabilities 14(b) (455,496) (316,676) (379,984)
Net cash provided by (used In)
financing activities (2,292,090) (2,153,270) (2,825,644)
Net increase (decrease) in cash held 26,862,364  (18,631,000) 3,884,843
Cash at beginning of year 12,376,825 121,447,935 8,491,982
Transfer from Trust Fund 28 30,298 120,529 0
Cash and cash equivalenis at the end of the vear 3,18 30,969,487 102,037,464 12,376,825

This statement is to be read in conjunction with the accompanying notes.
* Refer to Note 30 for restatement of comparatives.
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CITY OF JOONDALUP

STATEMENT OF BATES SETTING STATEMENT
BY NATURE OR TYPE

FOR THE YEAR ENDED 30 JUNE 2022

COPERATING ACTIVITIES
Net current assets at start of financial year - surplus/{deficit)

Revenue from operating activities (excluding rates)
Specified area rates

Operating grants and subsidies

Contributions, Reimbursements and Donations

Profit on asset disposals

Fees and charges

Interest earnings

Other revenue

Expenditure from operating activities
Employee costs

Materials and contracts

Utility charges

Depreciation on non-current assets
Loss on asset disposals

Loss on land held for sale

Interest expenses

Insurance expenses

Non-cash amounts excluded from operating activities
Amount attributable to operating activities

INVESTING ACTIVITIES

Non-operating grants, subsidies and contributions

Proceeds from disposal of assets

Proceeds from disposal of land held for sale

Purchase of property, plant and equipment

Purchase and construction of infrastructure

Net Distributions received from Tamala Park Regional Council
Equity Investment - Mindarie Regional Council

Amount attributable to investing activities

FINANCING ACTIVITIES

Repayment of borrowings

Payments for principal portion of lease liabilities
Transfers to reserves (restricted assets)
Transfers from reserves (restricted assets)
Transfer from Trust Fund

Amount attributable to financing activities

Surplus/(deficit) before imposition of general rates
Total amount raised from general rates
Surplus/(delicit) after imposition of gensral rates

This statement is to be read in conjunction with the accompanying notes.

PefdrtaaiNgte 30 for restatement of comparatives.

AUDITED

2022 2022 2021
Restated

NOTE Actual Budget Actual”
26 (b) 3,860,336 1,228,878 19,608,893
3,860,336 1,228,878 19,608,893
709,165 704,527 713,830
8,633,677 6,094,980 6,109,786
1,872,726 1,108,156 1,255,157
170,565 68,388 145,064
40,871,218 41,552,470 40,094,589
942,843 666,527 1,500,344
2(a) 3,798,536 1,697,723 3,317,572
56,998,730 51,892,771 53,136,342
(62,011,632) (66,183,322) (60,128,780)
(48,677,996) (55,194,834) (46,535,720)
(5,808,545) (6,133,858) {5,583,393)
(32,865,308) (31,927,3283) (31,530,289)
(54,175) (202,273) (15,882,989)
0 0 (62,997)
(309,204) (323,391) (387,238)
(1,535,116) (1,628,739) (1,457,672)
(151,261,976)  (161,593,740) (161,569,078)
26(a) 30,337,179 30,826,649 42,915,409
(60,065,731) (77,645,442) (45,908,434)
(a) 13,209,118 11,217,868 9,128,926
10(a) 471,727 1,937,600 445,136
0 0 1,496,094
8(a) (13,031,955) (5,799,784) (8,731,113)
9(a) (22,256,731) (47,134,295) (25,975,883)
23(c) 1,988,872 1,666,667 1,876,606
(14,166,667) 0 0
(33,785,636) (38,111,944) (21,760,234)
(33,785,636) (38,111,944) (21,760,234)
15(b) (1,836,594} (1,836,594) (2,445,660)
14(b) (455,496) 0 (379,984)
4 (28,626,856) (13,232,787) (45,467,843)
4 33,831,761 30,658,461 21,291,254
30,298 120,529 0
2,943,113 15,709,609 (27,002,233)
(90,908,254)  (100,047,777) (94,670,901)
25(a) 100,056,593 99,997,777 98,531,237
26(b) 9,148,338 (50,000) 3,860,336

{7



CITY OF JOONDALUP

STATEMENT OF NOTES TO AND

FOR THE YEAR ENDED 30 JUNE 2022

1.

BASIS OF PREPARATION

The financial report comprises general pumose financial
statemeénts which have been prepared in accordance with
the Local Government Act 1995 and accompanying regquiations.

Local Government Act 1895 requirements

Section 6.4(2) of the Local Government Act 1895 read with the Local
Governmeni{Financial Management) Regulations 1986 prescribe that
ihe financial report is prepared in accordance with the Local
Government Act 1985 and | 1o the exient thatthey are not
inconsistent with the Act, the Australian Standards (as they apply io
local governmenis and not-for-profit entities) and Interpretations of
the Australian Accounting Standards Board were applied where no
inconsistencies exist.

The Locaf Government {(Financial Management) Regulations 19588
specily that vested land is a right-of-use asset o be measured

at cost, and is considered a .zero cost concessionary lease. All
right-of-use assels under zero cost concessionary leases are
measured al zero cost rather than at fair value, except for vested
improvements on concessionary iand leases such-as roads,
pulidings or other infrastruciure which coniinue to'be reported at fair
value, as.opposead to the vested land which is measured at zero cost.

The measurement of vested improvements al falr value is a departure
from AASE 16 which would have required the City lo measure
any vested improvements at zero cost.

Accounting policies which have been adoptedin the preparation of
this financial report have been consistently applied unless stated
otherwise. Except for cash How and rate setling information, the
financial report has been prepared on the accrual basis and is
based pn historical costs, modified, where applicable, by the
measurement at falr value of selected non-current assets, financial
assets and liabilities.

FORMING PART OF THE FINANCIAL REPOAT

THE LOCAL GOVERNMENT REPORTING ENTITY

All funds through which the Clly controls resources to carnry
on its functions have been Included in the financial stalemenis
forming part of this financial report,

UDGEMENTS AND ESTIMATES
The preparation of 4 financial report in conformity with
Australian Accounting Standards requires management to
make judgements, estimales and assumplions that effect the
application of policies and reporied amounis of assats and
ltabilities, income and expensses.

The estimates and associaled assumptions are based on
nistorical experience and varlous other factors that ars
pelieved 1o be reasonable under the circumstances; th
resuits of which form the basis of making the judgements
about carrying values of assets and liabilities that are not
readily appareni from other sources, Actual results may differ
from these estimales,

The balances, transactions and disclosures impacted by accounting
estimaies are as follows:

- estimated fair value of certain financial assets
- astimation of useful lives of non - current assels
- estimation uncerfainties made in relation fo lease accounting,

18



Y OF JOONDALUP
S. TEMENT OF NOTES TO AND FORMING PART OF THE FINANCIAL REPORT
FOR THE YEAR ENDED 30 JUNE 2022
2. REVENUE AND EXPENSES
(a) Revenue (Granis, subsidies & contributions)

Grants, subsidies and contributions are included as both operating and non-operating revenues in the Statement of
Comprehensive Income:

2022 2022 2021
Actual Budget Actual
5 $ $
By nature and type:
Operating grants and subsidies
Current granis
Financial Assistance Grant 7,782,941 5,595,750 5,575,222
Depantment of Communities 10,000 1,000 1,000
Department of Local Gov Sport and Cultural Industries 10,000 0 5,000
FESA 95,823 91,230 75,705
Department of Transport 120,010 75,000 95,739
Healthways 10,000 10,000 9,000
Lotteries commission 45,000 45,000 0
Department of Industry, innovation and Science 0 0 175,586
Department of Fire and Emergency Services 418,217 250,000 69,023
Regional Development 0 0 7.500
Gaming and wagering 12,000 0 12,000
Other Grants 38,106 27,000 84,001
Department of Local Gov Sport and Cultural Industries- Whitfords Library
Mural 30,790 0 (]
Department of Local Gov Sport and Cultural industries- Covid Response 30,790 0 0
National Australia Day Council 30,000 0 0
8,633,677 6,094,980 6,109,786
Non-operating grants and subsidies
Capital grants
Main Roads Black Spot Funding 945,952 517,800 342,916
Main Roads Direct Grant 574,489 542,265 542,265
Main Roads - Metro Regional Road Programme 1,806,660 3,468,397 2,438,206
Cities - Roads to Recovery Programme 1,655,292 1,580,000 1,376,756
Department of Water and Environmentat Regulation ¢ 0 321,746
Department of Local Gov Sport and Cultural Industries 3,160,849 747,984 42,234
Lottery west 0 0 100,160
Department of Transport 0 0 157,411
Department Infrastructure Transport Regulation Development
Communication and Arts 4,470,093 4,151,000 2,227,494
Other Government Grants 279,689 0 3,000
12,893,004 11,007,446 7,552,188
Total grant revenue 21,526,681 17,102,426 13,661,874
2022 2022 2021
Aotusl Budgst Aciual
g $ 3
By Nature and Type:
Contributions, reimbursements and donations
Current
Contributions 411,839 158,500 131,221
Reimbursements 1,460,887 949,656 1,123,936

1,872,726 1,108,156 1,255,157



CITY OF JOONDALUP

STATEMENT OF NOTES TO AND FORMING PART OF THE FINANCIAL REPORT
F

OR THE YEAR ENDED 30 JUNE 2022
2. REVENUE AND EXPENSES (Continued)

{a) Revenue (Grants, subsidies & contributions)
Mon-operating contributions

Capital contributions

Hevenue {continued)

Fees and charges (by nature and lype)
Refuse charges

Membership fees

Learn to Swim program fees

User entry fees

Off street parking fees

On street parking fee

Parking infringements

Inspection fees

Development application fees
Facilities hire

Other miscellaneous charges
Building licence fees

Property rental

Court sport revenue

Rates instalments administration fee - (Note 25(d))
Fines enforcerent

Dog registration fees

Term program activities fees
Merchandise sales and other sales
Private property agreements

Land purchase enquiries fees
Multi storey car park parking fees
Other building and development charges
Commission

Credit card surcharge
Immunisation fees

Library fines and penaities
Personal training

Park hire

Cat registration fee

316,114 210,422 1,576,738
2022 2022 2021
SActuat Budget Actual
S $
21,696,009 21,746,880 20,743,412
2,968,544 2,764,907 2,833,528
2,224,629 2,074,304 2,049,189
1,993,217 2,104,870 1,877,382
1,270,107 1,313,000 1,323,661
1,086,700 1,080,000 1,090,099
96,527 900,000 313,755
1,111,306 1,053,750 1,005,533
808,174 750,000 1,056,685
941,723 930,664 939,363
885,423 989,389 877,224
783,271 635,000 890,639
786,045 766,995 765,385
406,300 503,962 505,162
583,581 602,500 539,055
281,216 500,000 443,453
339,028 440,000 371,512
175,803 151,655 212,714
347,765 266,271 313,717
131,791 139,000 131,084
355,325 248,000 349,086
790,429 850,000 613,930
122,061 110,000 135,012
144,285 145,150 163,191
114,201 116,306 118,334
87,802 100,000 109,170
66,196 66,000 49,858
0 0 8,891
201,665 123,867 207,046
62,086 80,000 67,521
40,871,218 41,552,470 40,094,589



CITY OF JODNDALUP
STATEMENT OF NOTES TO AND FORMING PART OF THE FINANCIAL REPORT
FOR THE YEAR ENDED 30 JUNE 2022

2 REVENUE AND EXPENSES (Continued)

{a) Revenue (Continued)

There were no changes to the amounts of fees or charges
detailed in the original budget.

Fees and Chargss

Girants, subsidiss and conttibutions
Operating grants, subsities and contributions
subsidies or contributions that are rot noope

fing in nature,

Mon-og ng grants, subsidies and coniribitions are amounts
recgived for the aoquisition or construniion of recogrisable
rion-financial assets to ba controllad by the local government.

ancd administration fz

2022 2022 2021
Actual Budget Actual

$ s $
Contracts with customars and ransfers
for recognisable non-financial assets
Revenue from contracts with customers and transfers
to enable the acquisition or construction of recognisable
non-financial assets to be controlled by the City
was recognised during the year for the following nature
or types of goods or services:
Operating grants, subsidies and contributions 8,633,678 3,444,625 6,109,786
Fees and charges 40,871,218 41,552,470 40,094,589
Other revenue 3,798,536 1,697,723 657,675
Non-operating grants, subsidies and contributions 12,893,004 11,007,446 7,552,188

66,196,436 57,702,264 54,414,238
Revenue from contracts with customers and transfers
to enable the acquisition or construction of recognisable
non-financial assets to be controlled by the City
is comprised of:
Revenue from contracts with customers included as a contract liability at
the start of the period o] 0 36,885
Revenue from conlracts with customers recognised during the year 53,303,432 46,694,818 46,825,165
Revenue from transfers intended for acquiring or constructing
recognisable non financial assets held as a liability at the start of the
period 3,277,510 0 718,847
Revenue from transfers intended for acquiring or constructing
recognisable non financial assets during the year 9,615,494 11,007,446 6,833,341

66,196,436 57,702,264 54,414,238
Information about receivables, contract assets and contract
liabilities from contracts with customers along with
financial assets and associated liabilities arising from transfers
to enable the acquisition or construction of recognisable
non financial assets is:
Trade and other receivables from contracts with customers 2,770,212 0 904,682
Contract assets 0 0 0
Contract liabilities from contracts with customers 0 0 0
Financial assets held from transfers for recognisable financial assets 4,313,050 o] 3,277,510
Grant liabilities from transfers for recognisable non financial assets (4.313,050) 0 (3,277,510}

Contract assets primarily relate to the City's nght to consideration for work completed but not billed at 30 June 2022,

Assets associated with contracts with custorners were not subject to an impairment charge.

Contract liabilities for contracts with customers primarily relate to grants with performance obligations received in advance, for which

revenue is recognised over time as the performance obligations are met.

information is not provided about remaining performance obligations for contracts with customers that had an original
expected duration of one year or less. Consideration from contracts with customers is included in the transaction price.
Performance obligations in relation to contract liabilities from transfers for recognisable non financial assets are satisfied

as project milestones are met or completion of construction or acquisition of the asset. All associated performance obligations

are expected to be met over the next 12 months.



Cit

¥ OF JOONDALUP

STATEMENT OF NOTES TO AND FORMING PART OF THE FINANCIAL REPORT
FOR THE YEAR ENDED 30 JUNE 2022
2. REVENUE AND EXPENSES (Continued)

{a} Revenue {continuad)

b

{c]

Rates {by nature and type)
General rates
Specified area rates

interest earnings

Interest on reserve funds

Rates instalment and penalty interest (refer Note 25(d))
interest earned on Other Investments

Other revenue
Profit on sale of Tamala Park land 23 (b)
Miscellaneous revenue

SHANIFICANT ACCOUNTING POLICIES

interest eamings

Interest incume is caloulated by apolving the effscive mie
w05 carrying amount of a financial ass

rrying amoun
tafter deduction of the loss alipwance).

2622 2022 2621
Srtual Budget Actual
% $ $

100,056,593 99,997,777 98,531,237
709,165 704,527 713,830
100,765,757 100,702,304 99,245,067
399,696 306,883 693,445
153,038 146,500 172,639
390,108 213,144 634,261
942,843 666,527 1,500,344
2,869,862 1,334,559 2,659,897
928,674 363,164 657,675
3,798,536 1,697,723 3,317,672

interest earnings (conlinuad)

interest income s preseniad as mance ncomes wherg s
earned from financial as thal-areheld Tor cash
Management pUImeses.

2092 2022 2021
Expenses Note ftual Budget Actual
3 5 $
Employee costs
Salaries and wages 51,385,529 56,728,404 49,268,895
Superannuation guarantee 5,200,110 5,536,015 4,996,032
Workers compensation 1,544,714 1,544,693 1,497,828
Other 3,881,279 2,374,210 4,366,025
62,011,632 66,183,322 60,128,780
Malerials and contraclts
Elected member costs 643,174 776,843 642,022
Administration costs 892,564 1,241,296 847,960
Rentatl and property charges 882,545 882,429 814,253
Telephone and communication charges 729,463 734,193 686,608
Finance related cosls 495,377 501,828 539,798
Professional charges 2,021,066 2,795,846 1,793,002
Public relations costs 808,136 1,184,905 778,731
Computing costs 3,099,785 3,241,102 2,150,104
Contributions and donations 1,376,105 2,043,997 1,099,899
Purchase of minor equipment 2,428,058 2,432,626 1,155,880
Travel and vehicle maintenance expenses 1,660,169 1,741,307 1,385,428
Waste management costs 16,582,369 4,778,923 17,040,434
External contractors and services 14,633,964 29,908,936 13,552,154
Other materials and services 2,425,220 2,930,603 4,039,447
48,677,996 55,194,834 46,535,720
interest expenses (finance costs)
Borrowings 15(b) 131,762 154,842 206,519
Lease liabilities 14(b) 177,442 174,356 180,719
309,204 329,198 387,238
Utilities Charges
Electricity 5,515,690 5,871,493 5,337,905
Gas 42175 56,327 42,919
Water 250,680 206,038 202,569
5,808,545 6,133,858 5,583,393
Auditors remuneration
- Audit of the Annual Financial Report 89,700 80,000 94,540
- Acquittals and certification fees 10,030 0 10,570
109,730 80,000 105,110

{12



CITY OF JOONDALUP
STATEMENT OF NOTES TO AND FORMING PART OF THE FINANCIAL REPORT
FORTHE YEAR ENDED 30 JUNE 2022

2. REVENUE AND EXPENSES

Revenue recognition policy on main sources of fees and charges

When
obligations Tirning of
Malure of Goods and typically Revenue
Revenue Category Services satisfied Payment Terms recognition
Refuse Charges Charge for refuse Over time Payment dates per  When rates notice
collection and processing rates notice is issued
Membership fees Sports/recreation activities Over time In full in advance \é\;?;n the fees are
Learn to swim program Sports/recreation activities Over time in full on booking z\;?;n iedeas are
User entry fees Sports/recreation activities isnlrt‘i?'rlsa peint At point of sale/entry g\;?:,n therlees are
Off street parking fees Car parking ﬁ'?ﬁip aint At point of sale/entry \é\;?sn thertees are
; . Single point . When the fees are
On street parking fees Car parking in time At point of sale/entry paid
. . . Single point . When the fees are
Multi Storey car parking fees Car parking P At point of sale/entry paid
Parking and other infringements Fmgs fgr breaches of .Sm.gle point Paymem. in full within Whgn payment is
legistation in time defined time received
2 REVENUE AND EXPENSES (Continued)
Hevenue recognition policy on main sources of fees and charges (continued)
When
obligations Timing of
MNature of Goods and typically Hevenue
Revenue Calegory Services salisfied Payment Terms recognition

Inspection fees:

Pool inspections Statutory - Compliance ~ Single point  In accordance with  When rates notice

safety check in time rates notice due date is issued
Other inspections Statutory - Regulatory, ~ Single point  gyjl payment priorto  When the fees are
food, health and safety ~ Intime inspection paid
Development application fees Compliance with Single point 1 1 on application leden TSI
fegislation in time pai
- . ; - Single point  In full at point of When the fees are
Facilities hire Use of City facilities if HiFFE sale/booking paid
Property rental Use of building space Over time Risfineel tate: Jnom Clport 1Ss.E o)

invoice issue invoice



CITY OF JOONDALUP
STATEMENT OF NOTES TO AND FORMING PART OF THE FINANCIAL REPORT
FOR THE YEAFR ENDED 30 JUNE 2022

3. CASH AND CASH EQUIVALENTS NOTE 2022 Resiated 2021
g $
Unrestricted 30,599,142 12,376,825
Restricted 8,670,345 0
Total cash and cash equilavents 39,269,487 12,376,825
Term deposits - Unrestricted 0 13,600,290
Term deposits - Restricted 101,210,000 114,049,710
Term deposits 6(b) 101,210,000 127,650,000
Total Cash and Cash Equivalents and Term Deposits 140,479,487 140,026,825

Restrictions

The following classes of assets have restrictions
imposed by regulations or other externally imposed
requirements which limit or direct the purpose for which
the resources may be used:

Total Unrestricted cash and term deposits 30,599,142 25,977,115
Total Restricted cash and term deposits 109,880,345 114,049,710
140,479,487 140,026,825

The restricted assets are a result of the following specific
purposes to which the assets may be used:

Reserves - cash/financial asset backed 4 105,567,295 110,772,200
Grants for transfers for recognisable non financial assets 13 4,313,050 3,277,510
Total restricted assets 109,880,345 114,049,710

SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING POLICIES

Cash and cash equivalents Heslricled assels

Cash and cash squivalents include cash on hand, cash at bank, Restricted asset balances are notavailable for general use by
deposits available on demand with banks and other short term the focal government due fo externally imposed resirictions.
highly liguid investments with original malunities of three months Externally imposed restrictions are specified in an agreement,

or less that are readily convertible to known amounts of cash contract or fegislation. This applies 1o reserves, unspent grants,
and which are subject to an insignificant risk of changes invalus subsidies and contributions and unspent loans that have notbeen
and bank overdrafis, fully expended in the manner speciiied by the contributor,

legislationor loan agreement.

* Refer to Note 30 for restatement of comparatives.
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OITY OF JOONDALUP

STATEMENT OF NOTES TO AND FORMING PART OF THE FINANCIAL REPORT

FOR THE YEAR ENDED 30 JUNE 2022

5. TRADE AND OTHER RECEIVABLES

Current

Rates receivable

Sundry receivables

GST receivable

Allowance for impairment of receivables

Mon-current
Pensioner's rates and ESL deferred
Long service leave - due from other Councils

SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING POLICIES

Trade and other raceivables

Trade and other receivables include amoumts duefrom
ratepayers for unpaid rates and service charges and
other amounts due from'third parties for goods sold-and
services performed in the ordinary course of business,

Trade receivables are recognised al original invoice
amotint Jess any allowances for uncoliectible amounts
{L.e. impairmenty: The carrving amount ol net rade
receivables s equivalent to fairvalue as itis duefor
setttement within 30 days.

impalmment and risk exposure

Information about the impairment of rade recelvables
and their exposure to-credit risk and interest.rate risk
can be found in Note 27,

2022 2021
$ §

1,558,519 1,687,531
2,770,212 904,682
665,035 1,084,630
(14,106) (26,026)
4,979,660 3,650,817
1,908,240 1,920,992
198,149 118,468
2,106,389 2,039,460

Classification and subsequent measursmeni
Receivables expected 1 be collected within 12 months
of the end of the reporting period are classified as
current assets, All other receivables are classified as
non-current agsets.

Trade raceivables are held with the obiective o collect
the contraciual cashilows and therefore measures them
subzeguently at amortised cost'using the effective
interest rate method.

Due 1o the short term nature of current receivables, their
carrying amount is considered 1o be'the same as their
fair value, Non-current receivables are indexed to
inflation, any difference between the face value and faly
value s considerad immalerial,
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CITY OF JOONDALUP
STATEMENT OF NOTES TO AND FORMING PART OF THE FINANCIAL REPORT
FOR THE YEAR ENDED 30 JUNE 2022

6.

(a)

INVENTORIES AND OTHER FINANCIAL ASSETS

2022 Hestated 2027
ke g
Inventories
Current
Inventories 174,993 135,835
Land held for resale 90,442 90,442
Assets held for transfer (Note 1) 2 4
Catalina Estate - Land held for sale (Note 2) 442,990 0
708,427 226,281

Non-current
Catalina Estate - Land held for sale (Note 2) 2,059,598 2,086,631
Total Inventory 2,768,025 2,312,912

Note 1- Assets held for transfer comprises: Two lots of land to be transferred to Development WA for the Ocean
Reef Marina development. The two lots were originally recognised and presented at a combined cost of $554,785.
They are now held at their net realisable value, following revaluation in 2019-20. The land was presented in the
2018-19 financial year at a combined fair value of $63,077,000 following revaluation in 2017. In addition petipheral
assets previously held at a value of $6,598,000 ($2,745,000 buildings and $3,853,000 infrastructure) relevant

to the development are also held at net realisable value. Refer Note 23.2

Note 2 - This land relates to the Tamala Park Regional Council (TPRC) which was established in January 2006

for the purpose of the development of the Tamala Park land jointly owned by seven local governments, including the
City of Joondalup.

The City has restated the carrying value of the non current land held for sale.

Refer Note 11 & Note 30 for details.

SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING POLICIES

General Land held for resale (Continusd)

Inventories are measurad at the lower of cost and net Borrowing costs and holding charges incurred after
realisable value. development is completed are expensed.

Net realisable value is the estimated selling price inthe Gains and losses are recognised in profit or loss at
ordinary course of business less the estimated costs of the Hime of signing an unconditional conlract of sale if
completion and the estimated cosls necessary to. make significant risks and rewards. and effective control pver
the sale: the land, are passed onto the buyer at this point.

Land held for resale Land held for resale is vlassified as current except
Land held for development and resale is valued atthe whete it is held as nonscurrent based on the Council's
lower of costand net realisable value, Cost includes the intentions 1o release for sale.

cost of acquisition, development; borrowing costs and
holding costs until completion of development.

|18



CITY OF JOONDALUP
STATEMENT OF NOTES TO AND FORMING PART OF THE FINANCIAL REPORT
FOR THE YEAR ENDED 30 JUNE 2022

6. INVENTORIES AND OTHER FINANCIAL ASSETS

2022 Restated 2021°
{b} Other Financial Assets
& $
(i} Current assets
Financial assets at amortised cost 101,210,000 127,650,000
101,210,000 127,650,000
Other financial assets at amortised cost
Term deposits 101,210,000 127,650,000
101,210,000 127,650,000
(it} Non-current assetls
Financial assets at fair value through profit and loss 97,255 92,259
97,255 92,259
Financial assets at fair valus through profit and loss
Units in Local Government House Trust 97,255 92,259
97,255 92,259
The City holds 5 units out of a total of 620 fully paid ordinary Units in the Local
Government House Trust. Changes in the fair vaiue of Units in the Trust
recognised as non-current financial assets at fair value through profit and loss
have not been recognised nor considered as they are unlikely to be material and
unable to be reliably determined at the time of preparation of these statements.
SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING POLICIES Financial aesels al falr vaiue through profii and loss
Ciher financial assels al amortised cost The City classifies the following financial assets at fair value
The City classifies financial asseis at amortised cost if both of the through profit and loss:
folfowing criteria are met: - debt investments which do not qualify for measurement at
- theasselis held within a busimess model whose objective Is to collect gither amortised cost or fair value through other comprehensive
ithe contractual cashilows, and income, equily investments which the City has not elected
- the contractual terms glve rise 1o cash flows that are solely paymens to recognise falr value gains and losses through other
of srincipal and interest, comprehensive incoms,
Fairvalues of imancial assets at amortsed cost are not materially impairment and risk
different to thelr carrying amounis, sincs the Interest recelvabls information regarding Impairment and sxposure o nsk can be
on those assets are of a short Term nature. Non-current financiat found at Note 27.
assets atamortised cost fair values are based on discounted
cash fows using e current market rates. These are classified as
fevel 2 falr values in the falr value bierachy [ses Note 27) due toths
observable market rates.
Interest received is presented under cashiiows from operaing
activiles in the Siatement of Cash Flows whare i Is eamed from
financial asseis that are held for cash management purposes,
* Refer to Note 30 for restatement of comparatives.
7 OTHER CURRENT ASSETS
2021 2020
$ $
Other assets - current
Prepayments 738,765 757,967
Accrued income 372,344 597,565
1,111,109 1,355,533

SIGMIFICANT ACCOUNTING POLICIES

Oiher current asseis

Other non-financial asses nclude prepayments. which
represent payments'in advance of receipt of goods or
services orthat part of expenditire made in one
accounting period covering a term extending heyond
that period.
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CITY OF JOONDALUP

STATE

MENT OF NOTES TO AND FORMIN

FOR THE YEAR ENDED 30 JUNE 2022

1

0.

FIXED ASSETS

SIGHIFICANT ACCOUNTING POLICIES

Fined asseiﬁ

Each class of fixed assets within either plapt and equipment or
infrastructure, is carried at cost or fair value as indicated less,
where applicable, any accumulated depreciation and impairment
losses

initial recognition and measurement between

mandatory revaluation dates

Assets for which the fair value as al thedate of acquisition is under

$5,000 are not recognised as an asset in accordance with

Financial Management Regulation 174 (5). These assels are
sxpensed immediately

Where mulliple individual low value assets are purchased togsthe
as part of a larger asset or collectively forming a larger asset
axceeding the threshold, the individual assets are recognised as
one asset and capitalisad

In refation 1o this initial measuremen, cost is defermined as the fair
value of the assets given as consideration @iui; costs incidenial to

the acquisition. For assets acquired at zero cost or otherwise
significantly less than fair value, cost is determined as falr value at
the date of acquisition. The cost of non-current assets constructed
by the City includes the cost of all materials used in constructio
direct labour on the project and an appropriate proportion of vari ab
and fixed overheads.

individual assets that are land; buildings ang infrastructure
acquired between inilial recognition and the

next revaluation of the asset class in accordance with the
mandatory measurement framework, are recognised-at cost

and disclosed as being at fair value as management believes cost
approximates fair value. They are subject to subseguent revaluation
al the next anniversary dale in accordance with the mandatory
measuremant framawork.

Hevaluation

The fair value of land, buildings and infrastruciure

is determined at lsast every five years in accordance

with the regulatory framewaork. This includes bulldings.and
infrastructure items which wers pre-existing improvements
(i.e. vested improvements) on vested land acquired by the City

PART OF THE FINANCIAL

REPORT

Revaluation (Continued)

Althe end of each period the valuaton is reviewed and where
appropriate the falr value is updated to reflect current market
conditions. This process is considered fo be in accordance

with Local Government (Financial Mapagement) Regulation 17A {2}
which requires land, buildings, infrastructure, investment properiies
and vested improvements to be shown at fmr valug,

Increases in the carrying amount arising on revaluation of assets
are crediled 1o a revaluation surplus In equity. Decreases that offset
previous increases of the same class of asset are recognised
against revaluation surplus directly in eguity. All other decreases
are recognised inprofit or loss,

AUSTRALIAN ACCOUNTING STANDARDS - INCONSISTENCY
Land under roads from 1 July 2018
As a result of amendments o the Local Government (Financial
Management) Regulations 1998, effective from 1 July 201
land, including land under roads, is treated as right-of-use
assetls measured at zero cost. Therefora, the previous incansistency
with AASE 1051 1in mspeu of non-recognition of land under roads
acguired on or after 1 July 2008 has been ramoved, even though
measurement at zero coct means that land under roads is still not
included in the statement of financial positior

g, vested

Yesied improvements from 1 Juily 2019

The measurement of vested improvements at fair value in accordance
with Local Government (Financial Management) Regulation 17A[2)(iv}
is a depariure from AASE 16 which would have reguired the City 1o
measure the vested improvements as part of the related right-of-use
assets al zero cost,

Felferio Note 14 that detalls the significant accounting policies applving
to leases (including right-of-use assets),

|24
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CITY OF JOONDALUP
STATEMENT OF MOTES TO AND FORMING PARY OF THE FINANCIAL REPORY
FOR THE YEAR ENDED 30 JUNE 2022

10. FIXED ASSETS

(b) Depreciation & Impatrment 2022 2022 2021
Actual Budget Actual
g $ 3
Buildings - non-specialised 4,413,745 4,505,857 4,454,907
Furniture and equipment 431,485 13,456 525,355
Plant and equipment 2,435,970 2,567,124 2,484,055
Library Assets 513,173 508,076 536,730
Right of Use Assets (Leases) 521,851 576,257 436,968
Infrastructure - Roads 9,625,419 10,541,825 10,299,556
Footpaths 2,646,304 2,078,012 2,044,505
Drainage 4,544,814 4,618,497 4,610,428
Parks and Reserves 3,247,378 3,266,415 3,110,759
Car Park 419,857 363,366 338,212
Bridges and Underpasses 391,986 474,774 473,762
Other Infrastructure 129,338 98,008 110,585
Lighting 1,260,450 1,266,804 1,266,965
Impairment 2,283,538 1,048,852 837,503

32,865,308 31,927,323 31,530,290

Depreciation on revaluation

When an item of property, plant and equipment is

revalued, anv accumulated depreciation at the dale of

the revaluation is treated in one of the following ways:

{a} The gross carrying amount is adjusted in a manner
thatis consistent with the revaluation of the carrving
amount of the asset. For example, the gross carrying
amount may b@« restated by reference to ohservable
market data or il may be restated proportionately to the

The assets residual values and useful lives are reviewed, and change in the carrying amount. The aﬂcumuha%

adjusted if appropriate, at the end of each reporting period. depreciation at the date of the revaluation is adjusted
to equal the difference between the jrow carrying
amount and the carrying amaount of the asset after
taking into account accumulated impalrment losses; or

(b} Eliminated againstthe gross carrying amount of the
asset and the net amount restated to the revalued

Gamns and losses on disposals are determined by amount of the asset.

comparing procesds with the carrying amount, These

gains and losses are Included in the statement of

comprehensive income In the period in which they arise

Jﬂg:%'emé?ssr%

The depreciable amount of all fixed assets including buildings
but excluding freshold land and vested land, are deoreciated
on a straight-line basis over the individual asset’'s useful life
from the time the asset is held ready for use, Leasehold
improvements ars depmc ated over the shorter of either the
unexpired period of the isase or the estimated useful fife of
the improvemesnis.

An assel's carrying amount is written down immediately to ils
recoverable amount if the assel's carrying amiount is greater
than its estimated recoverable amount.

Sepreciation rates

Typical estimated useful lives for the different asset classes

for the current and prior years arg included in the table below:

Asset Class Useful iife ‘Asset Class Usefullile
Buildings 1010100 vears Parks'and Reserves:

Eurniture and squipment 3o 10 years Eencing 151030 vears

Plant and equipment Sto i3 years Furnilure and Amenities 1010 50 vears
Lirary assets 81012 years Hard Landscaping 101050 vears
Artworks il lrrigation 20to B0 years
Infrastructure Assets: Marine 20 years
Roads/Tralfic Management 3010 100 years Parkand POS Signage 151020 years

Footpaths 1010 100 years Play space 20 years
Drainage 7810100 years POS Structure 2010100 years
Car Parks 30 10 100 years Soft Landscaping 1010 40 years

Bridges and Underpasses
Lighting
Cther Infrasiructure assets

7010100 years
2510 40 years
10 10 70 vears

Sporting Infrastructure
Waste

101060 years
10 years
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CITY OF JOONDALUP
STATEMENT OF NOTES TO AND FORMING PART OF THE FINANCIAL REPORT
FORTHE YEAR ENDED 30 JUNE 2022

12. TRADE AND OTHER PAVABLES 2022 2021
$ $
Current
Trade payables 2,709,216 4,600,329
Other payables 317,462 695,348
Accrued expenses 4,266,327 3,105,207
Rates received in advance 3,336,241 3,266,095
Bonds and deposits held 2,269,505 872,326
12,898,751 12,539,305

SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING POLICIES

Trade andd other pavables Frepaidrates
Trade and other payables represent liabilities for goods Prepaid rates are; until the taxable svent has occurred
and sew’ces provided to the City priorto the end of the {start of the nexi financial year), refundable at the reguest
financial year that are unpald and arise when the Clty of the ratepayer. Rates receivad in advance ars Initiaily
becomes obliged to make fulure payments in respect recognised as'a financial fiability. When the taxable event
of the purchase of these goods and services, occurs, the financial liability Is extinguished and the City
The amounts arg unsecured, are recognised as a recognises revenue for the prepaid rates that have not besn
current liability and are normally pald within 30 days of refunded.
racognition
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CITY OF JOONDALUP

STATEMENT OF NOTES TO AND FOBMING PART OF THE FINANCIAL REPCRT

FOR THE YEAR EMDED 30 JUNE 2022

Current

Grant liabilities from transfers for recognisable non-financial
assets

Developer Contribution

Performance obligations for each type of liability are expected
to be recognised as revenue in accordance with the following
time bands:

Less than 1 year

SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING POLICIES

Coniract ligbilities represent the the City's obligation to
transter goods or services 1o a customer forwhich the
City has recsived consideration from the customer.

With respect to transfers for recognisable non-financial
assets, contract Habiliies represent performance
obligations which are not yet salisfied,

Contract liabilities are recognised as revenus when the
performance obligations in'the contract are satisfied.

Movement in grant/contract liabilities:

Reconciliation of changes in grant liabilities

Operating Grants
Non-operating Granis
Contract Liabilities for developer contributions

.. - 2
& $
4,313,050 3,277,510
1,221,867 1,221,867
5,534,917 4,499,377

Liabilities under
ransfers to
acguire or
consiyuct non-
financial assels
Contract to be conirolled

Habilities by the entity
$ $
0 5,534,917
0 5,534,917

Lizbilities under transiers o acauire or construct
non-financial assels 1o be conlrolled by the entity
Grant liabilities represent the the City's performance
ebligations to construct recognisable non-financial
assets o identified specifications which are yetio be
safisfied.

Grant Hiabilities are recognised as revenue when the
performance obligations in the contract are safisfied.

Opening Income Slosing
Balance Additions FRecognised Balance
1o7/2021 2021/22 2021/22 AB/062022
$ 3 $ 5
0 8,633,677 (8,633,677) 0
3,277,510 13,928,544 (12,893,004) 4,313,050
1,221,867 0 0 1,221,867
4,499,377 22,562,221 (21,526,681) 5,534,917
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CITY OF JOONDALUP
STATEMENT OF NOTES TO AND FORMING PARYT OF THE FINANCIAL REPORYT
FOR THE YEAR ENDED 30 JUNE 2022

14, RIGHT OF USE ABSETS AND LEASE LIABILITIES

(a)

Righi-of- use asseis

Opening Balance at the beginning of the year
Land

Plant and Equipment

Depreciation
Net adjustment to Lease Liabilities

Carrying amount at the end of the year
Land
Plant and Equipment

The following amounts were recognised in the statement
of comprehensive income during the period in respect of
leases where the entity is the leases:

Depreciation expense on Right-of-use asset

Interest expense on lease liabilities

Total amount recognised in the statement of comprehensive
income

Total cash outflow from leases

SIGMNIFICANT ACCOUNTING POLICIER

Leases

Atinceptionof a contract: the City assesses if the contract
contains or is'a lease A coniract is, of containg, alease

if the contract convays the right {o control the use of an
identified asse! for a period of time in exchange for
consideration.

Atthe commencament date, arightof use assetis
recognised al cost and lease liabillly ai the present
value.of the lease payments that are not paid at that date.
the lease payments are discounted using the interest rats
implicit in the lease, if thal rate can be readily
determined. i the rate cannot be readily determined, the
City uses ils incremental borrowing rate.

All contracts that are classified as shori-term: leases
{i.e. a lease with a remalning term of 12 months orless)
and leases of low value assets are recognised as an
operaling expense on a siraight line basis over the
term of the lease.

Leasesforright'of use assets are secured over the
assel being leassd.

2082 2021
g 5
6,106,348 6,503,818
445,399 35,940
6,551,747 6,539,758
(521,851) (436,968)
450,602 448,958
6,175,254 6,106,348
305,245 445,399
6,480,498 6,551,747
521,851 436,968
177,442 180,719
699,293 617,687
632,938 560,703

Rightobuse aasels ~valuation

Right-of-use gssels are measured atcost. This
means that all right-of-use assets (other than
vested improvements) under zero cost
concsssionary leases are measured at zero
costile. notincluded in the statement of financial
position). The exception is vested improvemenis on
concessionary land leases such as roads, bulldings
or other infrastructure which are reporied at

fairvalue.

Refer to Mote 10 for detalls onthe significant
aceounting policies applying fo vested improvemenis,

Rightof-use assels - depreciation
Right-of-use assets are depreciated over the
lease term or useful lite of the underlying
asset; whicheveris the shortest. Where g
lease fransfers ownership of the underlving
assel, or the costof the right-of-use asset
reflects thalthe City anticipaies fo exercise
apurchase oplion, the spacific assetis
amortised overthe useful life of the underlying

assel.
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CITY OF JOONDALUP

STATEMENT OF NOTES TO AND FORMING PART OF THE FINANCIAL REPORY

FOR THE YEAR ENDED 30 JUNE 2022

15, INFORMATION ON BORROWINGS (Continued)

2022 2021
(¢} Undrawn Borrowing Facilities % 3

Credit Standby Arrangements

Bank overdraft limit 500,000 500,000
Credit card limit 47,000 47,000
Credit card balance at balance date (20,711) (17,142)
Total amount of credit unused 526,289 529,858
Loan facilities

Lease liabilities - current 455,497 455,497
L.ease liabilities - non-current 6,245,829 6,245,829
Total facilities in use at balance date 6,701,326, 6,701,326
Unused loan {acilities at balance date NiL NIL

SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING POLICIES
Financlal Habilities

Financial iabilities are recognise
a party 1o the contraciual provisions to the insfrurment,

at falr valus when the Clly becomes

Non-denvative hnancial liabifibes (excluding financat guarantess) are

subseguently measured at amortised cost. Gains or losses are

recognised in profit or foss,

Financial fiabiliies are derecognisea where the related obligations are

discharged, vancelied or explrad

Financizl Habiities (Continued)

Tre difference between the carrying amount of the firancial Bability
extinguished oriransterretd fo another parly and the falr valus of the
consideration paid. including the transfer of non-cash assets or liabilites
assumed, Is recognised in profit or loss.

Borrowing cosis
Borrowing cosls are recognised as an expenss when mourred.

Risk
informabon regarding exposure 1o risk can be founo at Note 27,
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CITY OF JOONDALUP

STATEMENT OF NOTES TO AND FORMING PART OF THE FINANCIAL REPORT

FOR THE YEAR ENDED 30 JUNE 2022

16, EMPLOYEE RELATED PROVISIONS

BT oy om § s wim o 2 mErab o CH sy s ph e b
Emplovec Related Provisions

Opening balance at 1 July 2021
Current provisions
Non-current provisions

Additional provision
Balance at 30 June 2022

Comprises
Current
Non-current

Amounts are expected to be settied on the following basis:

Less than 12 months after the reporting date
More than 12 months from reporling date

Provision for Provision for  Provision for  Provision for  Provision for
Annual Long Service Purchased Sick Workers
Leave Leave Leave Leave Compensation Total
$ g 3 E %
4,774,903 6,550,516 147,488 1,061,768 2,266,015 14,800,690
0 1,419,898 0 0 0 1,419,898
4,774,903 7,870,414 147,488 1,061,768 2,266,015 16,220,588
(186,276) (43,019) 61,169 (79,651) 870,989 623,212
4,588,627 7,927,395 208,657 982,117 3,137,004 16,843,800
4,588,627 6,425,430 208,657 982,117 3,137,004 15,341,835
0 1,501,965 0 0 0 1,501,965
4,588,627 7,927,395 208,657 982,117 3,137,004 16,843,800
2022 2021
3 $
15,341,835 14,800,680
1,501,965 1,419,898
16,843,800 16,220,588

Timing of the payment of current leave liabilities is difficult to determine as it is dependent on future decisions of employees. Expected
settiement timings are based on information obtained from employees and historical leave trends and assumes no evenis will ocour to

impact on these historical trends.

SIGHIFICANT AQCOUNTING POLICIES

Employes benefits

The City's obligations for smplovess” annual leave ano long
service leave entdit nis arg recognised as provizions

in the statermeant of financial position

Short-term employes banefits
Provision is mads for the City's obhigat
wloves benelits, Short-term emple

ons for shori-tenm
renafits are

B E

oriing pedod In which the emplovees render the
vice, including wages, selaties and sick leave.
ain employes benefits are measured at tha
{undiscountad} amounts expected 1o be pald when the
chligationiss

The City's obligations for short-term empiloyes bengfits
such aswages, salaries and sick leave arp recognised as
apart of current trade and other payables in the staternent
of financial posltion.

Other long-lerm employee benefits

Long-term employee benefils aremeasurad at the prosent
value of the specied luture payments fo be made fo
employees. Bxpecled fulure paymenis ingsormorale
articipated Rilire wags and salary levels, durations of
sarvice and emploves departures and are discounted at

Oiher tong-term employes benefits Continuad}
rates determined by reference to marke! vields af the eng

of the reparting period on government bonds that have
maturity dates that approximale the terms of the obligations.
Any remeasurements for changss In assumptions of
obligations for other long-term employee beneiils are
recogrised in profit of Joss in the periods in which the
changes ocour,

The Cily's obligations for long-term empiloyee benehis ars
pressnited as non-ourrant provisions i s siatement of
financial position, except whara the City does not have an
unconditional fight fo defer settlement for gt lsast 12 months
after the end ol ihe reporting period, in‘which case the
obligations are presented as current provisions,

Frovisions

Provisions are recognised when the City has a present
legal or constructive obligation, as & result of past events,
for:which it is probable that an outflow of economic benefits
will rasult and that outfiow can be reliably measured.

Provisions arg messursd using the pest eslimate ol the
amounts required 1o seltle the obligation atthe end of the
raporting period.
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CITY OF JOONDALUP

STATEMENT OF NOTES TO AND FORMING PART OF THE FINANCIAL REPORT

FOR THE YEAR ENDED 30 JUNE 2022

17. OTHER PROVISIONS

Other
Provisions Total
Opening balance at 1 July 2021
Current provisions 9,415 9,415
9,415 9,415
Movement in Provisions 0 0
Balance at 30 June 2022 9,415 9,415
Comprises
Current 9,415 9,415
9,415 9,415
Other Provisions include a provision for study activities by specific employees,
represented by salary deductions from those employees, as well as marginal
provision for write-off/impairment of certain classes of lower value assets, including
furniture and equipment.
Provision for write-off of assets 9,415 9,415
9,415 9,415
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CITY OF JOONDALUP
STATEMENT OF NOTES TO AND FORMING PART OF THE FINANCIAL REPORT
FOR THE YEAR ENDED 30 JUNE 2022

18, NOTES TO THE STATEMENT OF CASH FLOWS

Feconciliation of Cash

For the purposes of the Statement of Cash Flows, cash includes cash and cash equivaients,
net of outstanding bank overdrafts. Cash at the end of the reporting period is reconciled to the
related items in the Statement of Financial Position as follows:

222 2022 2021
Aciual Budget Hesiated Actual”
§ $ 3
Cash and cash equivalents 39,269,487 102,937,464 12,376,825
Reconciliation of Net Cash Provided By
Operating Activities to Net Result
Net result 16,736,254 1,514,676 (1,691,300)
Non-cash flows in Net result:
Adjustments to fair value of financial assets (4,996) 0 (3,233)
Depreciation on non-current assets 32,865,308 31,927,323 31,530,290
Net (Profit)/loss on sale of asset {116,390) (1,200,674) 15,737,925
(Profit)/loss on sale of land held for resale (2,869,862) 0 (2,596,898)
Changes in assets and liabilities:
(Increase)/decrease in receivables (13,291,233) 9,846 2,745,973
(Increase)/decrease in other assets 244,424 0 72,081
(increase)/decrease in inventories (39,162) 95,441 (591)
Increase/(decrease) in payables 14,526,113 113,875 398,559
Increase/(decrease) in provisions 623,212 214,966 62,354
Increase/(decrease) in other provisions 0 0 (57,290)
Grants and contributions for the development of assets (13,209,118) (11,217,868) (9,128,926)
Net cash from operating activities 35,464,550 21,457,585 37,068,944

* Refer to Note 30 for restatement of comparatives.
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19.

EMENT OF NOTES TO AND FORMING PART OF THE FINANCIAL REPORT
HE YEAR ENDED 30 JUNE 2022

CONTINGENT LIABILITIES

Contaminated site — Tamala Park Landfill site

In February 2020, MRC received its first Mandatory Auditor's Report (MAR) as requested by the Department of
Water and Environmental Regulation (DWER) in respect to the Tamala Park Waste Management Facility site.

Among other things, the purpose of the MAR is to confirm that earlier investigations adequately characterised the
contamination status of the site and whether potentially significant risks to human health, the environment or
environmental values exist on-site or off-site.

The MRC received a second iteration of the MAR in November 2021, which has further assessed the
contamination status of the site. In reaching their conclusion, the independent auditor has evaluated the
information contained in the investigative reports as generally complete, accurate and compliant with the relevant
guidelines. Also, the assessments were sufficient to define the potential extent and types of contamination.

The MAR auditor has determined, based on the analysis contained in the assessed reports, that the site remains
suitable for ongoing use as a Class Il landfill ('source site'. Likewise, the affected site to the north of the facility
remains suitable for its current use as a development buffer zone (‘affected site’). A summary of findings for the
source site are listed below;

Source site:

» All soils samples returned results below established criteria.

« Groundwater results indicate impact to the aquifer immediately below the landfill levels above relevant drinking
water established criteria, although some results are reflective of naturally occurring conditions. Groundwater on
site remains suitable for controlled industrial use on site without an unacceptable risk.

« Landfill gas results indicate that the existing extraction system is working effectively, with negligible detection of
landfill gas outside the extraction network.

Affected site:

» Groundwater results indicate some contaminants above relevant drinking water established criteria but not
criteria for non-potable uses. Elevated leveis of some identified contaminants are also known to occur naturally in
the local environment.

« No landfill gas detected outside the site boundary.

Currently, DWER has classified the site as "Contaminated — Remediation Required” and the affected site as
“Contaminated — Restricted Use".

The MAR report received in November 2021 required further investigation to confirm 2 main areas:

» Adequacy of the landfill gas monitoring network and assessment of the potential for off site migration of landfill
gas.

* On going assessment of landfill gas and groundwater as part of the ongoing Site Management Plan to inform
long term trends and need for migration measures.

Since receiving the MAR in November 2021:

Groundwater monitoring

The MRC has commissioned 2 rounds of groundwater testing (December 2021 and June 2021), with the final
report on the testing received August 2022. One of the report's conclusions were based on the groundwater
monitoring results in 2021, no significant changes to the overall risk profile at the TPWMF, buffer zone and nearby
residential development have been identified, compared to the 2020 assessment. This report also recommended
ongoing monitoring required and the recommendation to rationalise the groundwater monitoring network and the
number of analytical suites included in each sampling round.
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CITY OF JOONDALUP
STATEMENT OF NOTES TO AND FORMING PART OF THE FINANCIAL REPORT
FOR THE YEAR ENDED 30 JUNE 2022

Site management plan (SMP)

A SMP was developed and received in May 2022 for the MRC. The SMP is required to provide a management
plan for the site to ensure that potential risks associated with soil, landfill gas and groundwater contaminants are
appropriately managed for the ongoing use of the site as a landfill facility and leachate management. There are no
specific “results” from this plan. This Plan remains an evolving document that addresses the overall management
of landfill gas and groundwater based on the latest advice.

Landfill aas monitoring

The most recent gas monitoring report was obtained in Sept 2021 this covered 3 sampling rounds (January to
March 2021). One of the report's conclusions were “Under the current site conditions (i.e. active landfill gas
extraction and continuous landfill gas monitoring in the workshop), the risks to the site’'s workers and off-site
residents from landfill gas are considered Low. The risks to site’s infrastructure and terrestrial ecosystem is
however considered Negligible.” Gas testing was also conducted in December 2021 and October 2022, however,
the MRC has not yet received the gas monitoring report for these test.

At this time, the MRC has no new information to suggest that an additional landfill rehabilitation provision is
required to address any specific remediation requirements, nor do the recommendations from groundwater or gas
reports recommend any such action.

Contaminated sites- other

Under the contaminated sites Act 2003, the City is required to report known and suspected contaminated sites
to the Department of Water and Environmental Regulation (DWER). In accordance with the Contaminated
Sites Act 2003, DWER classifies these sites on the basis of the risk to human health, the environment and
environmental values. Where sites are classified as contaminated - remediation required or possibly
contaminated investigation required, the City may have a liability in respect of investigation or remediation
expense.

During the year the City reported two suspected contaminated sites to DWER. These have been classified as
"Possibly Contaminated Investigation is Required". The City is unable to assess the likely outcome

of the classification process, and accordingly, it is not practicable to estimate the potential financial effect or to
identify the uncentainties relating to the amount or timing of any outflows.
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CITY OF JOONDALLP
STATEMENT OF NOTES TO AND FORMING PART OF THE FINANCIAL REPORT
FOR THE YEAR EMDED 30 JUNE 2022

20. CAPITAL COMMITMENTS 2022 2021

(a) Capital Expenditure Commilmenis

Contracted for:

- capital expenditure projects 15,795,272 6,479,885
15,795,272 6,479,885

Payable:

- not later than one year 15,795,272 6,479,885

| 39



CITY OF JOONDALUP
STATEMENT OF NOTES TO AND FORMING PART OF THE FINANCIAL REPORT
FOR THE YEAR ENDED 30 JUNE 2022

21. RELATED PARTY TRANSACTIONS

Elected Members Remuneration

2022 2022 2021
The following fees, expenses and allowances were Agtual Budget Actual
paid to council members and/or the Mayor. % $ )
Elected Members Allowances 586,441 585,343 585,343
Elected Members Conferences/Training 14,179 104,900 24,305
Elected Members Travel and Child Care 20,202 32,000 22,625
Other Specified Expenses 22,352 15,600 9,749
643,174 737,843 642,022
Mayor- Albert Jaceb
Mayor's Annual aliowance 138,367 137,269 137,269
Annual allowance for ICT expense 3,500 3,500 3,500
Elected Members Travel and Child Care expense 8,250 8,000 8,246
Other Specified Expenses 6,518 1,200 6,194
Elected Members Conferences/Training 5,990 16,100 540
162,625 166,069 155,749
Deputy Mayor - Christine Hamilion Prime
Deputy Mayor's annual allowance 13,813 0 0
Meeting attendance fees 33,548 31,678 31,678
Annual allowance for ICT expense 3,500 3,500 3,500
Elected Members Travel and Child Care expense 0 2,000 0
Other Specified Expenses 4,479 1,200 358
Elected Members Conferences/T raining 2,195 7,400 2,394
57,535 45,778 37,930
Councilior - Adrian Hill
Meeting attendance fees 19,756 0 0
Annual allowance for ICT expense 2,462 0 0
Elected Members Travel and Child Care expense 0 0 0
Other Specified Expenses 1,167 0 0
Elected Members Conferences/Training 0 0 0
23,385 0 0
Councillor - Christopher May
Meeting attendance fees 31,678 31,678 31,678
Annual allowance for ICT expense 3,500 3,500 3,500
Elected Members Travel and Child Care expense 879 2,000 1,202
Other Specified Expenses 2,035 1,200 1,453
Elected Members Conferences/Training 0 7,400 0
38,092 45,778 37,833
Councillor - Daniel Kingston
Meeting attendance fees 22396 0 0
Annual allowance for ICT expense 2,462 0 0
Elected Members Travel and Child Care expense 0 0 0
Other Specified Expenses 0 0 ]
Elected Members Conferences/Training 0 0 4]
24,858 0 0
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21 RELATED PARTY TRANSACTIONS (Continused)

TAT

K] THE YEAR ENDED 30 JUNE 2022

Councillor - John Chester

Meeting attendance fees

Annual allowance for ICT expense

Elected Members Travel and Child Care expense
Other Specified Expenses

Elected Members Conferences/Training

Councillor - John Logan

Meeting attendance fees

Annual allowance for ICT expense

Elected Members Travel and Child Care expense
Other Specified Expenses

Elected Members Conferences/Training

Councillor - John Rafiis

Meeting attendance fees

Annual allowance for ICT expense

Elected Members Travel and Child Care expense
Other Specified Expenses

Elected Members Conferences/Training

Councillor - Kerry Hollywood

Meeting attendance fees

Annual aliowance for ICT expense

Elected Members Travel and Child Care expense
Other Specified Expenses

Elected Members Conferences/Training

Councillor - Mige Jones

Meeting attendance fees

Annual allowance for ICT expense

Elected Members Travel and Child Care expense
Other Specified Expenses

Elected Members Conferences/Training

Councillor - Philippa Taylor

Meeting attendance fees

Annual allowance for ICT expense

Elected Members Travel and Child Care expense
Other Specified Expenses

Elected Members Conferences/Training

EMENT OF NOTES TO AND FORMING PART OF THE FIMANCIAL REPORT

2022 2022 2021
Actual Budget Actyal
§ & $
31,678 31,678 31,678
3,500 3,500 3,500
1,527 2,000 655
544 1,200 614
0 7,400 0
37,249 45,778 36,447
31,678 31,678 31,678
3,500 3,600 3,500
1,813 2,000 2,507
1,106 1,200 1,386
0 7,400 52
38,197 45,778 39,123
34,318 31,678 31,678
3,500 3,500 3,500
1,844 2,000 943
808 1,200 418
0 7,400 7,823
40,470 45,778 44,362
9,282 31,678 31,678
1,038 3,500 3,500
423 2,000 1,377
230 1,200 817
0 7,400 0
10,973 45,778 37,372
31,678 31,678 31,678
3,500 3,500 3,500
2,223 2,000 2,669
3,774 1,200 830
2,028 7,400 4,808
43,203 45,778 43,485
6,642 31,678 31,678
1,038 3,500 3,500
181 2,000 888
98 1,200 1,459
1,988 7,400 2,018
9,947 45,778 39,543
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STATEMENT OF NOTES TO AND FORMING PART OF THE FINANCIAL REPORT

FOR THE YEAR ENDED 30 JUNE 2022

21 RELATED PARTY TRANSACTIONS (Continued)

Councillor - Russ Fishwick

Deputy Mayor's annual allowance

Meeting attendance fees

Annual allowance for ICT expense

Elected Members Travel and Child Care expense
Other Specified Expenses

Elected Members Conferences/Training

Councilior - Russsll Poliwka

Meeting attendance fees

Annual allowance for ICT expense

Elected Members Travel and Child Care expense
Other Specified Expenses

Elected Members Conferences/Training

Councillor - Suzanne Thompson
Meeting attendance fees

Annual allowance for ICT expense

Elected Members Travel and Child Care expense
Other Specified Expenses

Elected Members Conferences/Training

Councilior - Tom Mclean

Meeting attendance fees

Annual allowance for ICT expense

Elected Members Travel and Child Care expense
Other Specified Expenses

Elected Members Conferences/Training

Key Management Personnel (KMP) Compensation Disclosure

The total of remuneration paid to KMP of the
City during the year are as follows:

Short-term employee benefits
Post-employment benefits
Other long-term benefits
Termination benefits

Short-term employee benefits

These amounts include all salary, fringe benefits and cash bonuses awarded to KMP except
for details in respect to fees and benefits paid to elected members which may be found above.

Post-employment benefits

These amounts are the current-year's estimated cost of providing for the City’s superannuation

contributions made during the year.

Other long-term benefits

These amounts represent long service benefits and annual leave accruing during the year.

Termination benefits
These amounts represent termination benefits paid to KMP

petied 2022 2021
Actual Budget Actual
g $ $
6,756 22,438 22,438
34,318 31,678 31,678
3,500 3,500 3,500
2,961 2,000 2,593
115 1,200 904
0 7,400 82
47,650 68,216 61,195
31,678 31,678 31,678
3,500 3,500 3,500
0 2,000 0
1,480 1,200 929
0 7,400 0
36,658 45,778 36,107
31,678 31,678 31,678
3,500 3,500 3,500
0 2,000 1,301
0 1,200 358
0 7,400 0
35,178 45,778 36,837
31,678 31,678 31,678
3,500 3,500 3,500
0 2,000 244
] 1,200 617
1,979 7,400 0
37,157 45,778 36,039
643,176 737,843 642,022
2022 2021
Attual Actual
$ $
1,207,060 973,188
119,649 127,821
138,046 142,086
67,861 310,389
1,533,616 1,553,484
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CITY OF JOONDALUP
STATEMENT OF NOTES TO AND FORMING PART OF THE FINANCIAL REPORT
FOR THE YEAR ENDED 30 JUNE 2022

21. RELATED PARTY TRANSACTIONS (Continusd)

Transactions with related parties

Transactions between related parties and the City are on normal commercial terms and conditions,
no more favourable than those available to other parties, unless otherwise stated.

No outstanding balances or provisions for doubtful debts or guaranties exist in relation to related parties at year end.

2022 2021

The following transactions occurred with related parties: Actual Actual
b $

Mindarie Regional Council (Note 23)
Sale of goods and services 158,711 146,843
Purchase of goods and services 6,980,601 7,621,087
Trade and other receivables 0 11,297
Trade and other payables 108,887 248,173
Tamala Park Regional Council (Note 23)
Distributions received 1,666,666 1,500,000
Reimbursements received 322,206 376,606
Payments made for settling GST liabilities 165,040 39,933
Trade and other receivables 22,587 25,673
Trade and other payables 96,456 55,374

Related Parties
The City's main refated parties are as follows:

i. Key management personnel
Any person{s) having authority and responsibility for planning, directing and controlling the activities
of the entity, directly or indirectly, including any elected member, are considered key management
personnel.

ii. Other Related Parties
An associate person of KMP employed by the City under normal employement terms
and conditions.

Any entity that is controlled by or over which KMP, or close family members
of KMP, have authority and responsibility for planning, directing and controlling the activity
of the entity, directly or indirectly, are considered related parties in relation to the City.

iii. Entities subject to significant influence by the City
An entity that has the power to participate in the financial and operating policy decisions of an
entity, but does not have control over those policies, is an entity which holds significant influence.
Significant influence may be gained by share ownership, statute or agreement.
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CITY OF JOONDALUP
STATEMENT OF NOTES TO AND FORMING PART OF THE FINANCIAL REPORT
FOR THE YEAR ENDED 30 JUNE 2022

22. INVESTMENT IN ASSOCIATES

{a) Carrying amouni of investment in associatles

e

Equity in Mindarie Regional Council- Note (b)
Equity in Tamala Park Regional Council- Note (c)

Share of profit/(loss) from continuing operations
Mindarie Regional Council
Tamala Park Regional Council

Mindarie Regional Council

2072 20271
8 )
19,336,855 3,922,081
9,085,982 9,161,548
28,422,837 13,083,629
(2,108,605) (799,818)
0 (122,142)
(2,108,605) (921,960)

The City of Joondalup, along with the City of Wanneroo, City of Perth, City of Stirling , City of Vincent, Town of
Cambridge and Town of Victoria Park is a member of the Mindarie Regional Council. The City holds 1/6 share

of the land and establishment costs of the refusal disposal facility.

Mindarie Regional Council Total Comprehensive ncome

Total operating revenues

Total operating expenses

Net Result

Other comprehensive income

Net change on revaluation of assets

Total Comprehensive Income

The City's interest in Mindarie Regional Council's
Total Comprehensive Income {1/6th share)

Share of assaciate’s profit/(loss) from ordinary activities

Share of associate's other comprehensive income arising
during the period

Share of assaciate's total comprehensive income arising
during the period

The Mindarie Regional Councii Financial Position

Current Assets
Non-Current Assets
Total Assets

Current liabilities
Non-Current Liabilities
Total Liablilities

Net Assets

The City's interest in Mindarie Regional Council Het assets
{1/6th share)

Movement in Carrying Amount

Carrying amount at 1 July

Share of associate's total comprehensive income arising during
the period

Contribution to equity in associate
Carrying amount at 30 June

2022 2021
43,482,662 55,810,250
(56,134,290) (60,609,155)
(12,651,628) (4,798,905)
20,140,272 0
7,488,644 (4,798,905)
(2,108,605) (799,818)
3,356,712 0
1,248,107 (799,818)
2022 2021
5 g
50,281,492 42,526,862
95,598,663 90,593,148
145,880,155 133,120,010
(5,605,777) (14,479,677)
(24,253,247) (95,107,847)
(29,658,024) (109,587,524)
116,021,131 23,532,486
19,336,855 3,922,081
3,922,081 4,721,899
1,248,107 (799,818)
14,166,667 0
19,336,855 3,622,081
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22. INVESTMENT IN ASSOCIATES (Continued)

{c) Tamala Park Regional Council
The Tamala Park Regional Council (TPRC) was established in January 2006 for the purpose of the
development of the Tamala Park land jointly owned by seven local governments, including the City of
Joondalup, which has 1/6 equity in the land. The West Australian Planning Commission (WAPC) requested
that a portion of this land be retained as "Bush Forever”, which the commission was prepared to acquire and
pay for. The "Bush Forever" land was disposed of by the joint owners to the WAPC in November 2006. The
City of Joondalup's share of the proceeds of disposal was $2,703,573 which was subsequently contributed to
the TPRC as equity investment to be used for TPRC purposes.

The current fair value of the equity is estimated at $9,085,981. As per the audited financial statements of
Tamala Park Regional Council for the year ended 30 June 2022, the City's share of Net Result of operations
was a loss of $162,601. The City has recognised this loss in the Statement of Comprehensive income in
accordance with the equity method of accounting.

Tamala Park Regional Council Tolal Comprehensive Income 2022 2021
b $
Total operating revenues 322,628 498,206
Total operating expenses (1,009,759) (1,070,778)
Net Result (687,131) (572,572)
Other comprehensive income
Net change on revaluation of assets 0 0
Total Comprehensive iIncome {687,131) (572,572)
The City's interest in Tamala Park Reglonal Council's
Total Comprehensive Income (1/6th share)
2022 2021
g §
Share of associate’s profit/(loss) from ordinary activities (114,812) (95,427)
Share of associate's profit/(loss) from ordinary activities (47,789 (26,715)
Share of associate's total comprehensive income arising
during the period {162,601) (122,142)
The Tamala Park Regional Council Financial Position 20522 2021
$ $
Current Assets 53,079,035 53,668,172
Non-Current Assets 1,786,027 1,722,724
Total assets 54,865,062 55,390,896
Current liabilities (216,486) (420,373)
Non-Current Liabilities (132,683) (1,231)
Total liabilities {349,169) (421,604)
Net Assets 54,515,893 54,969,292
The City's interest in Tamala Park Regional Council Net Assets
(1/6th share) 9,085,982 9,161,548
Movement in Carrying Value
Carrying amount at 1 July 9,161,548 7,816,650
Movement in Capital Contributions 2,075,906 3,343,646
Distributions Received (1,988,872) (1,876,606)
- Share of associate's total comprehensive income arising during
the period 0 (122,142)

Carrying amount at 30 June 9,248,583 9,161,548



CITY OF JOONDALUP
STATEMENT OF NOTES TO AND FORMING PART OF THE FINANCIAL HEPCORT
FOR THE YEAR ENDED 30 JUNE 2022

22, INVESTMENT IN ASSOCIATES (Continued)

SIGHIFICANT ACCOUNTING POLICIES

investiment in associaies

An associate is an entity over which the City has
significant influence. Significant influence is the power
o participate in the financial operating policy

decisions of that enlity butis notoonirol or joint control
of those policies, Investments in‘associates ars
accounted for in the financial statements by applying
the pquity method of accournting, whereby the
investrment is inttially recognised at cost and adjusted
thereafier for the post-acquisition change inihe

Clty's shars of net assets of ihe associate. in addiion,
the City's share of the profit or loss of the associate Is
included in the City's profit or loss,

The carrying amoeunt of the'invesiment inclides, wherg
applicable, goodwill relating 1o the associate. Any
discount an acquisition, whereby the City's 'share of the
net falr value of the assoclate exceeds the costof
investrent, is recognised in profit or loss in the period
it which the investment is acquired.

vestment in assoseies (Continusd)

Profits and losses resuling from ransactions belwsen
the City and the asspoiale are eliminated to the.extent
of the Gity's interest in the associate. When the City's
share of losses inan associale squals or excesdsits
interestin the associate; the City discontinues
recognising its shars of further losses unlessit has
incurred legal or onstructive obligations or made
payments on behalf of the associate. When the
associate subsequently makes profits, the Cliy will
resume recognising its share of these profits once s
share of the profits equals the share of thelogses not
recognised.

4
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CITY OF JOONDALUP
STATEMENT OF NOTES TO AND FORMING PART OF THE FINANCIAL REPORT
FOR THE YEAR ENDED 30 JUNE 2022

23. MAJOR LAND TRANSACTIONS
1. Tamala Park Land Sales
(@) Details
The Tamala Park Regional Council (TPRC) was established in January 2006 for the purpose of the development of

the Tamala Park land jointly owned by seven local governments, including the City of Joondalup. TPRC has
developed and sold 1116 lots of land to date. The City's share of Sales Proceeds of land to date is $52,576,054.

2022 2022 2021
(b} Current year transactions Aciug! Budget Hestated
Actual
% 3 $
Gross sales 5,048,112 0 4,985,565
Cost of goods sold (2,178,250) 0 (2,325,668)
Profit on sales 2,869,862 0 2,659,897
(¢c) Expected future cash flows
2026/27 to
2022/23 2023/24 2024/25 2025/28 2028/30 Total
$ $ 3 3 $ $

Cash outflows
- Development costs (5,245,636)  (4,834,611) (4,394,065) (5,813,419) (7,154,758)  (27,442,489)
(5,245,636) (4,834,611) (4,394,065) (5,813,419) (7,154,758) (27,442,489)

Cash inflows
- Sale proceeds 8,930,084 9,488,923 10,074,028 11,006,616 21,476,197 60,975,849
8,930,084 9,488,923 10,074,028 11,006,616 21,476,197 60,975,849

Met cash flows 3,684,448 4,654,313 5,679,964 5,193,198 14,321,439 33,533,360

() Assets and liabiiities

Hestated
zoze 2021
$ $
Catalina Estate - Land held for sale ' 2,502,589 2,086,631

2. Ocean Reef Marina Development

The City is currently engaged with Development WA on the progress of the Ocean Reef Marina project. The City holds two lots

of land at the site, which are presently earmarked to be handed over to Development WA to progress the project. No binding
agreement has yet been reached regarding this transfer or the project outcomes for the parties involved, consequently no financial
information in this regard can be presented. The transfer to Development WA is expected to occur in the 2022-23 financial year.
This development is not considered a major land transaction at present.

24. TRADING UNDERTAKINGS AND MAJOR TRADING UNDERTAKINGS

The City did not participate in any trading undertakings during the 2021-22 financial year.
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CITY OF JOONDALLUP
STATEMENT OF NOTES TO AND FORMING PART OF THE FINANCIAL REPORT
OR THE YEAR ENDED 30 JUNE 2022
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5. BATING INFORMATION (Continued)

() interest Charges & Instalments

instalment instalment Unpaid Rates
Date Plan Plan interest
instalment Options Due Admin Charge Interest Rale Rate

kS % %
Option One
Single full payment 29 August 2021 0.00 0.00% 0.00%
Option Two
First instalment 29 August 2021 0.00 0.00% 3.00%
Second instalment 31 October 2021 12.00 0.00% 3.00%
Option Three
First instaiment 29 August 2021 0.00 0.00% 3.00%
Second instalment 31 October 2021 12.00 0.00% 3.00%
Third instaiment 2 January 2022 12.00 0.00% 3.00%
Fourth instalment 6 March 2022 12.00 0.00% 3.00%

2022 2022 2021
Aciusl Budget Actual

% $ $
Interest on unpaid rates 158,039 125,500 172,639
Charges on instalment plan 583,581 602,500 539,055

736,620 728,000 711,694




CITY OF JOONDALUP
EMENT OF NOTES TO AND FORMING PART OF THE FINANCIAL REPORT
OR THE YEAR ENDED 20 JUNE 2022

26. RATE SETTING STATEMENT INFORMATION

2021/22 Restated®
202122 Budget 2020/21
(30 June 2022 (30 June 2022 (30 June 2029
Carrled Carried Carried
Mote Forward} Forward) Forward
3 § $
(a) Mon-cash amounts excluded from operating activities
The following non-cash revenue or expenditure has been excluded
from amounts attributable to operating activities within the Rate Setting
Statement in accordance with Financial Management Regulation 32.
Adjustments o operating activities
Less: Profit on asset disposals 10(a) (170,565) (68,388) (145,064)
Less: Catalina Estate - Profit on sale of Land (2,869,868) 0 (2,659,897)
Movement in pensioner deferred rates and other (non-current) (66,929) 0 (96,646)
Movement in employee benefit provisions (non-current) 82,067 100,000 (100,162)
Movement of inventory 442,990 0 (1,559,097)
Add: Loss on disposal of assets 10(a) 54,175 202,273 15,882,989
Add: Loss on land held for sale 0 0 62,997
Add: Depreciation on non-current assets 10(b) 32,865,308 31,927,323 31,530,289
Mon cash amounis excluded from operating activities 30,337,179 32,161,208 42,915,409
(o) Surplus/(deficit) alter imposition of general raies

The following current assets and liabilities have been excluded
from the net current assets used in the Rate Setting Statement
in accordance with Financial Management Regulation 32 to
agree to the surplus/(deficit) after imposition of general rates.
Adjustments to net current assets
Less: Reserves - cash/financial asset backed 4 (105,567,295) (85,368,554) (110,772,200)
Add: Current liabilities not expected to be cleared at end of year

- Current portion of borrowings 15(a) 909,513 909,513 1,836,594

- Current portion of developer contributions heid in reserve 1,221,867 0 1,221,867

- Current portion of lease liabilities 14(b) 492,772 324,973 455,497
Total adjustments to net curreni assels (102,943,143} (84,134,072) (107,258,242)
Met current assets used in the Rate Setting Siatement
Total current assets 147,278,683 116,839,488 145,259,456
Less: Total current liabilities (35,187,202) (32,755,416) (34,140,878)
Less: Total adjustments to net current assets (102,943,143) (84,134,072) (107,258,242)
Met current assels used in the Rate Setling Statement 9,148,338 (50,000) 3,860,336

* Refer to Note 30 for restatement of comparatives.
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CITY OF JOOMNDALUP
STATEMENT OF NOTES TO AND FORMING PART OF THE FINANCIAL REPORT
FOR THE YEAHR ENDED 30 JUNE 2022

27. FINANCIAL RISK MANAGEMENT

This note explains the City's exposure to financial risks and how these risks could affect the City's future financial

performance.
Risk Exposure arising from Measurement Management
. . L.ong term borrowings at variable nsitivi e ; :
Market risk - interest rate 9 9 o SI‘ Iy Utilise fixed interest rate borrowings
rates analysis

Credit risk

Liguidity risk Borrowings and other liabilities forecasts and borrowing facilities

The City does not engage in transactions expressed in foreign currencies and is therefore not subject to foreign currency risk.

Financial risk management is carried out by the finance area under policies approved by the Council. The finance
area identifies, evaluates and manages financial risks in close co-operation with the operating divisions. Council have
approved the overall risk management policy and provide policies on specific areas such as investment policy.

{a) Interesi rate risk

Cash and cash equivalents

The City's main interest rate risk arises from cash and cash equivalents with variable interest rates, which exposes the
City to cash flow interest rate risk. Short term overdraft facilities also have variable interest rates however these are
repaid within 12 months, reducing the risk level to minimal.

Excess cash and cash equivalents are invested in fixed interest rate term deposits which do not expose the City to cash

flow interest rate risk. Cash and cash equivalents required for working capital are held in variable interest rate accounts

and non-interest bearing accounts. Carrying amounts of cash and cash equivalents at the 30 June and the weighted average
interest rate across all cash and cash equivalents and term deposits held disclosed as financial assets at amortised cost

are reflected in the table below.

Cash and cash equivalents, trade Aging analysis  Diversification of bank deposits,
receivables, financial assets and  Credit analysis  credit limits. Investment policy

Rolling cash flow Availability of committed credit lines

Weighted
Average Carrying Fixed Variable Mon interest
Interest Rate Amounts Interest Rate Interest Rate Bearing
% $ $ $ $

2022
Cash and cash equivalents 0.45% 39,269,487 2,750,000 36,479,388 40,099
Financial assets at amortised cost - term
deposits 3.00% 101,210,000 101,210,000 0 0
Restated 2021~
Cash and cash equivalents 0.83% 12,376,825 0 12,367,740 9,085
Financial assets at amortised cost - term
deposits 3.00% 127,650,000 127,650,000 0 0

Sensitivity
Profit or loss is sensitive to higher/lower interest income from cash and cash equivalents as a result of changes in

interest rates. 2022 2021
$ g
Impact of a 1% movement in interest rates on profit and loss and equity** 364,794 123,677
““Holding all olhwer varables constant
Borrowings

Borrowings are subject to interest rate risk - the risk that movements in interest rates could adversely affect funding costs.
The City manages this risk by borrowing long term and fixing the interest rate to the situation considered the most

advantageous at the time of negotiation. The City does not consider there to be any interest rate risk in relation to borrowings.

Details of interest rates applicable to each borrowing may be found at Note 15(b).

* Refer to Note 30 for restatement of compératives.
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STATEMENT OF NOTES TO AND FORMING PART OF THE FINANCIAL REPORT
FORTHE YEAR ENDED 30 JUNE 2022

27. FINANCIAL RISK MANAGEMENT (Continued)
(b) Credit risk

Trade and Other Receivables

The City's major receivables comprise rates annual charges and user fees and charges. The major risk associated

with these receivables is credit risk — the risk that the debts may not be repaid. The City manages this risk by monitoring
outstanding debt and employing debt recovery policies. It also encourages ratepayers to pay rates by the due date
through incentives.

Credit risk on rates and annual charges is minimised by the ability of the City to recover these debts as a secured charge
over the land, that is, the land can be sold to recover the debt. The City has historically also been able to charge interest
on overdue rates and annual charges at higher than market rates, which further encourage payment.

The level of outstanding receivables is reported to Council monthly and benchmarks are set and monitored for acceptable
collection performance.

The City applies the AASB 9 simplified approach to measuring expected credit losses using a lifetime expected loss
allowance for all trade receivables. To measure the expected credit losses, rates receivable are separated from other
trade receivables due to the difference in payment terms and security for rates receivable.

The expected loss rates are based on the payment profiles of rates and fees and charges over a period of 36 months
before 1 July 2020 or 1 July 2021 respectively and the corresponding historical losses experienced within this period.
Historical credit loss rates are adjusted to reflect current and forward-looking information on macroeconomic factors

such as the ability of ratepayers and residents to settle the receivables. Housing prices and unemployment rates have been
identified as the most relevant factor in repayment rates, and accordingly adjustments are made to the expected credit loss
rate based on these factors.

The loss allowance as at 30 June 2022 for rates receivable was determined as follows:

More than 1 More than 2 More than 3
Current year past due years past due  years past due Total

30 June 2022
Rates receivable

Gross carrying amount 0 3,466,759 0 0 3,466,759
30 June 2021
Rates receivable

Gross carrying amount 0 3,608,522 0 0 3,608,522

The loss allowance as at 30 June 2021 and 30 June 2020 was determined as follows for trade receivables.

More than 30 More than 60 fMore than 90

Current days pasi due days pastdue days past due Total
30 June 2022
Trade and other receivables
Gross carrying amount 2,892,994 36,910 27,703 10,753 2,968,360
Loss allowance 0 0 0 14,106 14,106

30 June 2021

Trade and other receivables
Gross carrying amount 971,302 22,321 6,021 23,506 1,023,150
Loss allowance 0] 0 0 26,026 26,026



CITY OF JOOGNDALUP
STATEMENT OF NOTES TO AND FORMING PART OF THE FINANCIAL REPORT
FOR THE YEAR ENDED 30 JUNE 2022

27. FINANCIAL RISK MANAGEMENT (Continued)
(¢} Liquidity risk

Payables and borrowings
Payables and borrowings are both subject to liquidity risk — that is the risk that insufficient funds may be
on hand to meet payment obligations as and when they fall due. The City manages this risk by monitoring

its cash flow requirements and liquidity levels and maintaining an adequate cash buffer. Payment terms
can be extended and overdraft facilities drawn upon if required and disclosed in Note 14(c).

The contractual undiscounted cash flows of the City’s payables and borrowings are set out in the
liquidity table below. Balances due within 12 months equal their carrying balances, as the impact
of discounting is not significant.

Due Due Due Total
within between after contractual Carrying
1 year 1 & 5 years 5years  cash flows values
2022 3 $ $ $ $
Payables 12,898,751 0 0 12,898,751 12,898,751
Lease liabilities 669,655 2,928,890 4,801,719 8,400,264 6,696,435
Borrowings 979,875 1,959,750 0 2,939,625 2,807,892
14,548,281 4,888,640 4,801,719 24,238,640 22,403,078
2021
Payables 12,539,305 0 0 12,539,305 12,539,305
Lease Liabilities 632,933 2,275,552 5,319,963 8,228,448 6,701,326
Borrowings 1,946,574 2,939,624 0 4,886,198 4,644,486
15,118,812 5,215,176 5,319,963 25,653,951 23,885,117
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CITY OF JOONDALUP
STATEMENT OF NOTES TO AND FORMING PART OF THE FINANCIAL REPOR
FOR THE YEAR ENDED 30 JUNE 2022

e

28 TRUST FUNDS

Funds held at balance date which are required to be held in trust and which are not included in the
financial statements are as follows:

1July 2021 Amounts Recelved Amounis Pald  30.lune 2022

$ $ $ §
Burns Beach Dual Use Path Funds 24,941 0 (24,941) 0
Duffy House Funds 109,030 0 {5,357) 103,673
Connolly Residents Association 85,897 213 0 86,110
219,868 213 (30,298) 189,783

25 EVENTS OCCURING AFTER THE END OF THE REPORTING PERIOD

There were no material events after 30 June 2022 that require inclusion in the notes to the financial statements.
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STATEMENT OF NOTES TC AND FORMING PART OF THE FINANCIAL REPORT
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30 RESTATEMENT OF COMPARATIVES

{a} Tamala Park Regional Council land

The Tamala Park land is jointly held by the member councils for the purpose of being developed and sold. The City has a 1/6th share of the Tamala
Park fand, which comprises a tip site, refuse buifer land and fand held for development. The lip site and refuse bufler land forms part of Property,
Plant & Equipment. The portion of the land that is intended to be soid meets the definition of inventories per AASB 102 Inventories i.e., “held for sale in
the ordinary course of business” or “in the process of production for such sale” and should be carried at the lower of cost and net realisable value.

While the land held for sale has been correctly classified as Non-Current Inventories, the City inadveriently reported the Non-Current Inventories at
fair value instead of the lower of cost and net realisabie value in its previous financial reporis. This was due to an error in 2018-19 when the City
erroneously did not reverse the Revaluation Surplus when the land held for sale was reclassified from Property, Plant & Equipment to Non-Current
Inventories. This resuited in an overstaternent of Non-Current Inventories and Revaluation Surplus. In addition, the cost of land sold in previous years
has been overstated, with a corresponding understatement of the profit on sale of land and Retained Surplus.

This error has been rectified at 1 July 2020 by decreasing Non-Current Inventories by $14,363,843, with a corresponding decrease to the Revaluation
Surplus. In addition, Retained Surplus at 1 July 2020 has been increased by $225,927 with a corresponding decrease to Revaluation Surplus, to
correct the understatement of the profit on sale of land reported in 2019-20 and previous years.

The City's cost of land sold in 2020-21 has been decreased by $345,409 with a corresponding increase in Non-Current Inventories and profit on sale
of land. This has resulted in a cumulative increase of $571,336 to the Retained Surplus and a cumulative decrease of $14,018,433 to Non-Current
Inventories.

(b) Cash and Cash Eguivalent and Financial assets at amortised costs

During 2021-22 it was identified that the City had previously classified term deposits with original maturities exceeding 3 months as part of Cash and
Cash Equivalents, on the basis that the term deposits could be terminated at any time and therefore were readily convertible fo cash. In accordance
with AASB 107.7, for an investment to qualify as a cash equivalent it must be readily convertible to a known amount of cash and also be subject to an
insignificant risk of changes in value. On this basis, these term deposits should have been reported as Other Financial Assets instead of Cash and
Cash Equivalents.

The error has been rectified at 1 July 2020 and 30 June 2021 by decreasing Cash and Cash Equivalents by $116.530m and $127.650m respectively,
with a corresponding increase to Other Financial Assets.

In addition, the net cash flows related to these term deposits, totalling $11.120m have now been disclosed as an investing activity in the Statement of
Cash Flows for the year ended 30 June 2021.

() Property Plant and Equipment

The City identified that Work in Progress costs totalling $3,304,489 relating to additions to Buildings during 2019-20, had erroneously not been
capitalised in 2019-20 when they were completed. Consequently when the buildings were revalued during that year, the revaluation increment for
2019-20 was overstated by $3,304,489. In addition, the Revaluation Surplus and Work in Progress {reported as part of Propetty, Plant & Equipment)
at 30 June 2020 were also overstated by $3,304,489.

This error has been rectified at 1 July 2020 by decreasing Work in Progress and Revaluation Surplus by $3,304,489.

Changes to Financial Statements Notes As reported previously  Adjustments Restated
3 $ $

Balance as at 1st July 2020
Statement of Financial Position

Assets

Cash and cash equivalents 3,18 125,021,982 {116,530,000) 8,491,982
Financial assets at amortised costs 6(b) 89,026 116,440,974 116,530,000
Non Current Inventories &(a) 17,134,223 (14,363,843) 2,770,380
Property, plant and equipment 8(a) 372,777,727 {3,304,489) 369,473,238
Total Non Current Assets 1,328,473,645 (17,668,332) 1,310,805,313
Total Assets 1,462,279,506 {17,668,332) 1,444,611,174
Net Assets 1,418,213,724 (17,668,332) 1,400,545,392
Equity

Retained Surplus 559,003,347 225,927 559,229,274
Revaluation Surplus 1 772,614,765 (17,894,258) 754,720,507

Total Equity 1,418,213,723 (17,668,331) 1,400,545,392

s
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CITY OF JOONDALUP
STATEMENT OF NOTES TO AND FORMING PART OF THE FINANCIAL REPORT
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30 RESTATEMENT OF COMPARATIVES (Continued) Notes As reported previously  Adjusiments Restated
o 3 g

As at 30 June 2021
Statement of Financial Position
Assets
Cash and cash equivalents 3,18 140,026,825 {127,650,000) 12,376,825
Financial assets at amortised cosls 6(b} 92,259 127,557,741 127,650,000
Non Current inventories &(a) 16,105,064 (14,018,433} 2,086,631
Property Plant and Equipment 8(a) 370,183,639 (3.304,489) 366,879,150
Total Non Current Assets 1,381,432,842 (17,322,922} 1,364,109,920
Total Assets 1,526,692,298 {17,322,922) 1,509,369,376
Net Assets 1,482,077,801 (17,322,921) 1,464,754,879
Equity
Retained Surplus 532,790,048 571,336 533,361,385
Revaluation Surplus 11 838,515,552 (17,894,258) 820,621,294
Total Equity 1,482,077,801 {17,322,922) 1,464,754,879
For the year ended 30 June 2021
S of Comprehensive
Revenue
Other Revenue & Profit on sale of Tamala Park Land 2(a) 2,972,163 345,409 3,317,572
Total Revenue & Profit on sale of Tamala Park Land 151,177,106 345,409 151,522,515
Net result of the period (2,036,709} 345,409 {1,691,300)
Total comprehensive income for the period 63,864,078 345,409 64,209,487
For the year ended 30 June 2021
Statement of Cash Flows
Cash Flows from Investing Activities
Net Proceeds/(payments) from financial assets at amortised cost - Term deposits 0 {11,120,001) {11,120,001)
Net cash provided by (used in) investment activites {19,238,456) {11,120,001) (30,358,457}
Net increase (decrease) in cash held 15,004,843 {11,220,000) 3,884,843
Cash at beginning of year 125,021,982 (116,530,000} 8,491,982
Cash and cash equivalents at the end of the year 140,026,825 {127,650,000) 12,376,825
For the year ended 30 June 2021
Statemnent of Rate Setting Statement
Revenue from operating activities (excluding rates)
Other Revenue 2(a) 2,972,163 345,409 3,317,572
Total Revenue from operating activites (excluding rates) 52,790,933 345,409 53,136,342
Non-cash amounts excluded from operating activities 43,260,818 (345,409) 42,915,408
Note 6(a) Inventories
Non Current
Catalina Estate - Land held for sale 6(a) 16,105,064 (14,018,433) 2,086,631
Total inventories 6(a) 16,331,345 {14,018,433) 2,312,912
Note 8(a)
Property plant and equipment
Work in progress
Balance at 30 June 2021 8(a) 21,554,771 {3,304,489) 18,250,282
Note 18 - Notes to the statement of cash flows 18
Reconciliation of Cash
Cash and cash equivalenis 140,026,825 (127,650,000) 12,376,825
Net result (2,036,709) 345,409 {1,691,300)
Non-cash flows in Net resuit:
- (Profit)/loss on sale of fand held for resale (2,251,491) {345,409) (2,596,898)
Note 27 - Rate Setting Infor
{a) Non-cash amounts excluded from operating activities
The following non-cash revenue or expenditure has been excluded
from amounts attributable to operating activities within the Rate Setting
Statement in accordance with Financial Management Regulation 32.
Adjustments to operating activities
Less: Catalina Estate - Profit on sale of Land (2,314,488) (345,409) (2,659,897}
Non cash amounts excluded from operating activities 43,260,818 (345,409) 42,915,409
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NOTES TO AND FORMING PART OF THE FINANCIAL REPORT
FOR THE YEAH ENDED 30 JUNE 2022

32. FUNCTION AND ACTIVITY

{a) Service objectives and descriptions

City operations as disclosed in these financial statements encompass the following service orientated activities/programs.

PROGRAM MAME AND OBJECTIVES
GOVERNANCE

To provide a decision making process
for the efficient aillocation of limited
resources.

GENERAL PURPOSE FUNDING
To collect revenue to allow for the provision of

services.

LAW, ORDER, PUBLIC SAFETY
To provide services 10 help ensure a safer and
environmentally conscious community.

HEALTH
To provide an operational framework for
environmental and community health.

EDUCATION AND WELFARE
To provide services to disadvantaged persons,
family, the elderly, children and youth.

HOUSBING
Provision of housing and leased accommodation

COMMUNITY AMENITIES
To provide services required by the community.

RECREATION AND CULTURE

To establish and effectively manage infrastructure

and resources to help the social wellbeing of the
community.

TRANSPORT
To provide safe, effective and efficient transport
services to the community.

ECONOMIC SERVICES
To help promote the City and its economic well
being.

CTHER PROPERTY AND SERVICES
To monitor and control Council's overheads and
operating accounts.

ACTIVITIES

Governance relates to elected members costs and other costs that relate to the task of assisting
elected members and ratepayers on matters which do not concern specific City Services.

Rates income and expenditure, Grants Commission and pensioner deferred rates interest.

Supervision and enforcement of various local laws relating to fire prevention including the animal
control and other aspects of public safety.

Prevention and treatment of human ilinesses, including inspection of premises/food control,
immunisation and child health services.

Provision, management and support services for families, children and the aged and disabled
within the community, including pre-school playgroups, day and after school care, assistance to
schools and senior citizens support groups. Provision of aged persons units and resident funded
units.

Provision of housing and leased accommodation where the City acts as landlord.

Town planning and development, rubbish collection services, stormwater drainage, the
provision of public conveniences, bus shelters, roadside furniture and litter control.

Provision of facilities and support for organisations concerned with leisure time activities and
sport, support for the performing and creative arts. This includes maintenance of halls, aguatic
centres, recreation and community centres, parks, gardens, sports grounds and the operation of
libraries.

Construction, maintenance and cleaning of streets, roads, bridges, drainage works, footpaths,
parking facilities, traffic signs and the City works operation centre, including development, plant
purchase and maintenance.

Rural services, pest control and the implementation of building controls.

Public works overheads, plant/vehicle operations, sundry and other outlays that cannot be
assigned to one of the preceding programs



CITY OF JOONDALUP
STATED
FOR THE YEAR ENDED 30 JUNE 2022

(b} income and expenses

Income excluding grants, subsidies and coniributions
Governance

General purpose funding
Law, order, public safety
Health

Education and welfare
Community amenities
Recreation and culture
Transport

Economic services

Other property and services

Grants, zubsidies and contributions
Governance

General purpose funding
Law, order, public safety
Health

Education and welfare
Community amenities
Recreation and culture
Transport

Economic services

Other property and services

Total Income

Expenses

Governance

General purpose funding
Law, order, public safety
Health

Education and welfare
Community amenities
Recreation and culture
Transport

Economic services
Other property and services
Total Expenses

Net result for the period

This Note has been presented for first time this year.

MENT OF NOTES TO AND FORMING PART OF THE FINANCIAL

REPORT
2022 2022 2021
Actual Budget Aciual
$ b3 3

2,884,887 0 2,703,305
102,478,980 101,604,109 101,158,204
3,415,995 833,608 654,241
458,872 484,000 472,767
73,735 87,465 64,423
23,799,004 23,654,745 22,920,627
10,402,731 10,111,530 10,094,315
829,061 4,800,000 3,961,659
1,269,879 1,001,500 1,385,285
940,771 2,110,455 891,043
146,553,915 144,687,412 144,305,869
65,963 36,034 188,998
4,748,180 3,541,523 3,391,448
174,286 23,740 20,291
18,060 7,396 5,963
59,251 52,565 71,253
639,925 161,300 1,328,566
6,872,810 499,793 3,144,248
10,400,018 13,558,822 8,005,071
5,469 4,162 29,264
731,560 535,669 308,767
23,715,522 18,421,004 16,493,869
170,269,437 163,108,416 160,799,738
(8,202,860} (6,584,384) (10,822,400)
(3,213,367} (3,390,314) (5,093,754)
(3,559,411) (3,204,080) (5,175,189)
(1,648,678) (1,732,614) (1,764,692)
(2,148,036) (2,332,863) (2,871,464)
(25,698,346) (29,796,239) (28,759,901)
(48,613,329) (46,513,416) (49,029,870)
{30,310,544) (33,246,106) (34,235,383)
(2,549,570) (2,646,622) (2,121,105)
(27,589,041) (32,147,102) (22,617,280)
{153,533,182) (161,593,740) (162,491,038)

16,736,255

1,514,676

(1,691,300)
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CITY OF JOONDALUP
STATEMENT OF NOTES TO AND FORMING PART OF THE FINANCIAL REPORT
OR THE YEAR ENDED 30 JUNE 2022

Ry

o

{c) Fees and charges

This Note has been presented for first time this year.

1,631,952,231

1,509,369,376

2022 2022 2021

Actual Budget Actual
Governance (300) 0 1,948
General purpose funding 948,596 939,806 909,759
Law, order, public safety 3,415,995 833,608 654,241
Health 458,872 484,000 472,767
Education and welfare 73,735 87,465 64,423
Community amenities 23,774,901 23,654,745 22,920,627
Recreation and culture 9,692,723 9,407,003 9,379,460
Transport 829,061 4,800,000 3,961,658
Economic services 1,269,879 1,001,500 1,385,286
Other property and services 407,756 344,343 344,420

40,871,218 41,552,470 40,094,589

{cd} Total Assels 2023 2021
Actual Actual
& $

Governance 40,305,315 48,375,534
General purpose funding 36,714,347 28,230,484
Law, order, public safety 1,027,417 5,044,217
Health 95,367 371,938
Education and welfare 1,223,883 6,418,183
Community amenities 297,853,034 67,264,310
Recreation and culture 232,617,131 290,747,625
Transport 709,303,405 832,063,961
Economic services 41,493,573 29,361,611
Other property and services 171,318,759 201,491,512
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ATTACHMENT 2

Jix)
Auditor General

INDEPENDENT AUDITOR’S REPORT
2022
City of Joondalup

To the Councillors of the City of Joondalup

Opinion
| have audited the financial report of the City of Joondalup (City) which comprises:
o the Statement of Financial Position at 30 June 2022, the Statement of Comprehensive

Income by Nature or Type, Statement of Changes in Equity, and Statement of Cash Flows
and Rate Setting Statement for the year then ended

o Notes comprising a summary of significant accounting policies and other explanatory
information.

In my opinion, the financial report is:

° based on proper accounts and records

o presents fairly, in all material respects, the results of the operations of the City for the year
ended 30 June 2022 and its financial position at the end of that period

° in accordance with the Local Government Act 1995 (the Act) and, to the extent that they
are not inconsistent with the Act, Australian Accounting Standards.
Basis for opinion

| conducted my audit in accordance with Australian Auditing Standards. My responsibilities under
those standards are further described in the Auditor’s responsibilities for the audit of the financial
report section below.

| believe that the audit evidence | have obtained is sufficient and appropriate to provide a basis
for my opinion.

Emphasis of Matter — Restatement of comparative balances

| draw attention to Note 30 of the financial report which states that the amounts reported in the
previously issued 30 June 2021 financial report have been restated and disclosed as comparatives
in this financial report. My opinion is not modified in respect of this matter.
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Responsibilities of the Chief Executive Officer and Council for the financial report
The Chief Executive Officer of the City is responsible for:

e preparation and fair presentation of the financial report in accordance with the requirements
of the Act, the Regulations and Australian Accounting Standards

e managing internal control as required by the CEO to ensure the financial report is free from
material misstatement, whether due to fraud or error.

In preparing the financial report, the CEQ is responsible for:
e assessing the City’s ability to continue as a going concern
¢ disclosing, as applicable, matters related to going concern

e using the going concern basis of accounting unless the State Government has made
decisions affecting the continued existence of the City.

The Council is responsible for overseeing the City’s financial reporting process.

Auditor’s responsibilities for the audit of the financial report

As required by the Auditor General Act 2006, my responsibility is to express an opinion on the
financial report. The objectives of my audit are to obtain reasonable assurance about whether the
financial report as a whole is free from material misstatement, whether due to fraud or error, and
to issue an auditor’s report that includes my opinion. Reasonable assurance is a high level of
assurance but is not a guarantee that an audit conducted in accordance with Australian Auditing
Standards will always detect a material misstatement when it exists.

Misstatements can arise from fraud or error and are considered material if, individually or in the
aggregate, they could reasonably be expected to influence the economic decisions of users
taken on the basis of the financial report. The risk of not detecting a material misstatement
resulting from fraud is higher than for one resulting from error, as fraud may involve collusion,
forgery, intentional omissions, misrepresentations or the override of internal control.

A further description of my responsibilities for the audit of the financial report is located on the
Auditing and Assurance Standards Board website. This description forms part of my auditor’s
report and can be found at https://www.auasb.gov.au/auditors _responsibilities/ar4.pdf.

My independence and quality control relating to the report on the financial report

| have complied with the independence requirements of the Auditor General Act 2006 and the
relevant ethical requirements relating to assurance engagements. In accordance with ASQC 1
Quality Control for Firms that Perform Audits and Reviews of Financial Reports and Other
Financial Information, and Other Assurance Engagements, the Office of the Auditor General
maintains a comprehensive system of quality control including documented policies and
procedures regarding compliance with ethical requirements, professional standards and
applicable legal and regulatory requirements.

Other information

The Chief Executive Officer is responsible for the preparation and the Council for overseeing the
other information. The other information is the information in the entity’s annual report for the
year ended 30 June 2022, but not the financial report and my auditor’s report.

My opinion on the financial report does not cover the other information and, accordingly, | do not
express any form of assurance conclusion thereon.
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In connection with my audit of the financial report, my responsibility is to read the other
information and, in doing so, consider whether the other information is materially inconsistent
with the financial report or my knowledge obtained in the audit or otherwise appears to be
materially misstated.

If, based on the work | have performed, | conclude that there is a material misstatement of this
other information, | am required to report that fact. | did not receive the other information prior to
the date of this auditor’s report. When | do receive it, | will read it and if | conclude that there is a
material misstatement in this information, | am required to communicate the matter to the CEO
and Council and request them to correct the misstated information. If the misstated information is
not corrected, | may need to retract this auditor’s report and re-issue an amended report.]

Matters relating to the electronic publication of the audited financial report

This auditor’s report relates to the financial report of the City of Joondalup for the year ended

30 June 2022 included in the annual report on the City’s website. The City’'s management is
responsible for the integrity of the City’s website. This audit does not provide assurance on the
integrity of the City’s website. The auditor’s report refers only to the financial report. It does not
provide an opinion on any other information which may have been hyperlinked to/from the annual
report. If users of the financial report are concerned with the inherent risks arising from
publication on a website, they are advised to contact the City to confirm the information contained
in the website version.

Jabushagne

Sandra Labuschagne

Deputy Auditor General

Delegate of the Auditor General For Western Australia
Perth, Western Australia

20 December 2022
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CITY OF JOONDALUP

PERIOD OF AUDIT: YEAR ENDED 30 JUNE 2022
FINDINGS IDENTIFIED DURING THE FINAL AUDIT

ATTACHMENT 3

INDEX OF FINDINGS

RATING

Significant

Moderate

Minor

assets — frequency of valuations

1. Fair value of land, building and infrastructure

v

Key to Ratings

The Ratings in this management letter are based on the audit team’s assessment of risks and
concerns with respect to the probability and/or consequence of adverse outcomes if action is
not taken. We give consideration to these potential adverse outcomes in the context of both
quantitative impact (for example financial loss) and qualitative impact (for example inefficiency,
non-compliance, poor service to the public or loss of public confidence).

Significant - Those findings where there is potentially a significant risk to the entity
should the finding not be addressed by the entity promptly. A significant
rating could indicate the need for a modified audit opinion in the current
year, or in a subsequent reporting period if not addressed. However, even
if the issue is not likely to impact the audit report, it should be addressed

promptly.

Moderate - Those findings which are of sufficient concern to warrant action being
taken by the entity as soon as practicable.

Minor - Those findings that are not of primary concern but still warrant action being

taken.
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ATTACHMENT

CITY OF JOONDALUP
PERIOD OF AUDIT: YEAR ENDED 30 JUNE 2022
FINDINGS IDENTIFIED DURING THE FINAL AUDIT

1. Fair value of land, building and infrastructure assets - frequency of valuations

Finding

The City has performed a high-level assessment to determine whether its land, buildings and
infrastructure assets represent fair value at 30 June 2022. This review indicated there were no
significant movements or impacts on these asset classes relevant to 30 June 2022. However,
this assessment has relied on the City’s internal assessment by management of the current
market conditions.

The City completed an independent valuation of land and buildings in 2020, while some
classes of infrastructure assets were valued in 2018 and 2021.

Rating: Significant

Implication

Without a robust assessment of the fair value of the City’s land, building and infrastructure
assets, there is a risk that the fair value of these assets may not have been assessed
adequately and in compliance with AASB 13 Fair Value Measurement, as well as Regulation
17A(4)(b) of the Local Government (Financial Management) Regulations 1996 (the
Regulations).

Recommendation

The City consider implementing as part of the preparation of financial statements, a formal
robust process to determine whether indicators exist annually, that would trigger a requirement
to perform a formal revaluation of land, buildings and infrastructure assets. Where indicators
exist, a robust fair value assessment should be performed capturing the requirements of
AASB 13 Fair Value Measurement. This process is to ensure that the City’s assets are
recorded at fair value in compliance with AASB 13 Fair Value Measurement and the
Regulations.

This may entail obtaining relevant input from an independent valuer as to whether or not they
consider there are any prevailing market factors which may indicate that the fair value of
relevant assets is likely to have been impacted to any significant / material extent from the prior
year. Where a fair value assessment has been performed internally, the City may consider
having this assessment peer reviewed by an independent valuer to obtain assurance over the
valuation methodology applied, inputs and the reasonableness of the valuation model applied.

Management comment

The City completed an internal fair value assessment during the 2021-22 in relation to fair
value. The City saw no reason for additional costs to obtain a peer review or an independent
valuer to obtain assurances over the valuation methodology.

Re-valuing now, at the height of a shortage or materials and staff, would likely lead to an
inflated valuation. Given the previous valuation for land and buildings is only two years old with
infrastructure assets only one year old and is based on replacement cost, not market cost, the
time and expense of undertaking a revaluation was not considered in the public interest.

The rating is considered moderate or minor, rather than significant, as a high-level assessment
was completed.

Responsible person: Roisin O Neill
Completion date: 15 December 2022
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